


Wilc

N/} N PORT
Y /13 DULUTH INTERNATIONAL AIR

Closer to everywhere.

November 5, 2018
MEMORANDUM FOR RECORD
RE: Summary of Consultant Selection Process

The Duluth Airport Authority (DAA) intends to update its master plan for the Duluth International
Airport commencing in January 2019. In preparation for this project, DAA staff conducted a consultant
selection process seeking a qualified consultant to lead the project to it completion. The selected firm
was Short Elliott and Hendrickson (SEH).

The following service categories were included in the request for qualifications (RFQ):
e Airport Planning Services
e Environmental Consulting Services
e Financial Consulting Services
e Political Engagement, Community Involvement and Public Relations

The DAA shall make a grant application to the Federal Aviation Administration (FAA) and the State of
Minnesota Department of Transportation, Office of Aeronautics (MNDOT). Execution of the project is
contingent upon grant funding being made available to the DAA. The project elements, time frames and
estimates are subject to change at any time due to constraints outside the DAA’s control. The detailed
scope of each project element will be determined as each project is approved and funded:

e Activity Forecast

e Exhibit A Update

e Aeronautical Property Development/Redevelopment Planning

e Non-aeronautical Property Development/Redevelopment Planning

e Wetland Delineations

e Section 106 Assessments in Redevelopment Zones

e Air Traffic Control Tower Siting Study

e Movement Area and Ramp Congestion Analysis/Planning in the Vicinity of the Terminal Ramp

e General Aviation Ramp Capacity Analysis/Planning

e Recognition of Stakeholder Development Plans (148th, Cirrus, AAR, etc)

e Noise Exposure Map and Noise Compatibility Program Update

e Capital Financial Planning Services as Directed by DAA

In order to be considered responsive to the RFQ, interested firms were asked to demonstrate
experience in providing the type of consulting services for which the statement of qualifications (SOQ) is
applicable and the firm must be familiar with the DAA, its environs, and plans for the future.

Duluth International Airport 4701 Grinden Drive Phone (218) 727-2968 daa@duluthairport.com
Sky Harbor Airport Duluth, MN 55811 Fax (218) 727-2960 www.duluthairport.com



N /] N n'r
Fay DULUTH INTERNATIONAL AIRPO

Closer to everywhere.

Upon final decision of the selected firm, contract negotiations for a professional services agreement
were initiated. The length of this professional services agreement will be for the duration of the project
but generally not longer than 4 years from the date of contract execution.

Statements submitted by the established deadline were evaluated based upon the

following criteria:

Evaluation Criteria Weight

Capability to perform all aspects of the project and recent experience in airport projects comparable to the 15%
proposed scope.

Key personnel’s professional qualifications, experience and availability for the proposed project; reputation 30%
and professional integrity and competence; knowledge of FAA regulations, policies, and procedures.

Quality of projects previously undertaken and capability to complete projects without having major cost 20%
escalations or overruns. Capability to meet schedules or deadlines.

Qualifications and experience of sub-consultants who would be regularly engaged by the consultant under 10%
consideration.

Degree of interest shown in undertaking the project and the project team’s familiarity with and proximity to 10%
the geographic location of the project. Demonstrated understanding of the project’s potential challenges and
the sponsor’s special concerns.

Firm’s ability to provide robust community support and community involvement; to assist with outreach and 15%
advocacy used in support of this important planning exercise. The Firm's experience in engaging aviation
stakeholders, community and civic groups, local government entities, government agency stakeholders, the
media, adjacent neighborhoods, and the public at large.

The following is a timeline of key dates in the RFQ process:

September 4; the RFQ is posted publicly with City Purchasing, on the DAA’s website.
September 25; prospective firms were invited to tour the Duluth International Airport.
October 12; all requests for information were answered and disseminated to all firms who has
shown interest in the process.

October 22; SOQs from all proposing firms were due to the DAA.

November 20; DAA staff submits a contract for DAA Board approval.

Six firms showed interest at different points of the process. Two firms submitted SOQs for evaluation.

The evaluation group include: Ken Butler, Anna Tanski, Tom Werner, Blaine Peterson, Jana Kayser.

For questions regarding this procurement action please contact the undersigned.

Tom Werner, C.M.

Executive Director
Duluth Airport Authority

Duluth International Airport ’ 4701 Grinden Drive Phone (218) 727-2968 daa@duluthairport.com

Sky Harbor Airport

Duluth, MN 55811 Fax (218) 727-2960 www.duluthairport.com



W /| N .
yav DULUTH INTERNATIONAL AIRPOR

Closer to everywhere.

November 13, 2018
MEMORANDUM FOR RECORD
RE: Summary of the Professional Services Contract Terms

The Duluth Airport Authority (DAA) intends to update its master plan for the Duluth International
Airport commencing in January 2019. In preparation for this project, DAA staff conducted a consultant
selection process seeking a qualified consultant to lead the project to it completion. The selected firm
was Short Elliott and Hendrickson (SEH).

AGREEMENT STRUCTURE: Base agreement is before you for approval. Work orders will be negotiated
prior to the commencement of work tasks. Work orders include:
e A full definition of each assignment; including a scope or work with project phasing, and tasks, if
required
e Afee and expense schedule for each assignment
e Atime line for each assignment
e Execution by the Consultant and the Authority’s Executive Director

Work orders shall be dependent on the availability of grant funding.
TERM: 4 years or sooner if master plan is complete
FEE FOR SERVICES: Payment by assigned work order, in a fixed lump-sum payment method

TERMINATION: Either party upon sixty (60) days written notice. Should one party substantially fail to
perform in accordance with its term through no fault of the other, the party not in breach may
terminate this Agreement by giving 24 hours written notice to the other. At the complete discretion of
the Authority, this Agreement may be suspended for any length of time, or any project may be
suspended with ten (10) days written notice to the Consultant for any reason whatsoever.

For questions regarding this summary, please contact the undersigned.

jp
Tom Werner, C.M.

Executive Director
Duluth Airport Authority

Duluth International Airport 4701 Grinden Drive Phone (218) 727-2968 daa@duluthairport.com
Sky Harbor Airport Duluth, MN 55811 Fax (218) 727-2960 www.duluthairport.com



PROFESSIONAL SERVICES AGREEMENT
SHORT ELLIOTT HENDRICKSON INC.

PARTIES TO THIS AGREEMENT are the Duluth Airport Authority, Duluth International
Airport, 4701 Grinden Drive Duluth, Minnesota, 55811, hereinafter referred to as the "Authority",
and Short Elliott Hendrickson Inc., a Minnesota corporation with offices located at 3535 Vadnais
Center Drive, St. Paul MN, 55110-5196, hereinafter referred to as the "Consultant".

The Parties Acknowledge the Following:

The City of Duluth, Minnesota owns and the Authority is charged with operating the Duluth
International Airport located in Duluth, Minnesota, and;

The Authority has undergone a competitive consultant selection process in accordance with current
regulations and requirements of the Federal Aviation Administration, (Advisory Circular
150/5100-14E), to update the Duluth International Airport’s master plan and all of its sub elements
thereof, and;

The Consultant was chosen to provide services to the Authority, and;

The Consultant has expertise and experience in carrying out tasks and obligations of the various
airport planning, environmental, financial, political engagement, community involvement, public
relations, and consulting projects included herein.

The Authority desires to retain the services of the Consultant and the Consultant desires to provide
services to the Authority as specifically defined herein and in attachments hereto, contingent upon
the Authority securing grant funding from the Federal Aviation Administration (FAA) and the
Minnesota Department of Transportations, Aeronautics (MNDOT).

NOW, THEREFORE, for and in consideration of the promises and mutual covenants herein set
forth, and in compliance with Appendices and Attachments attached to and made a part of the
Agreement, the parties agree as follows:

1. PURPOSE. This Agreement is entered into between the parties for the purpose of the
Consultant providing professional engineering and planning services of a widely varying
nature to the Authority. It is hereby understood by the parties that each assignment or work
order shall be fully defined in a separate, written and dated attachment to this Agreement and
shall be incorporated herein and form a part of this Agreement. Each assignment or work order
shall include the following:

A. A full definition of each assignment; including a scope or work with project phasing, and
tasks, if required.

B. A fee and expense schedule for each assignment.

C. A time line for each assignment.

D. Execution by the Consultant and the Authority’s Executive Director.




In the event of a conflict between this Agreement and any assignment or work order issued
hereunder, the terms of the assignment or work order shall govern the provision of the
particular services or project involved in that assignment or work order.

Nothing herein shall be construed as requiring the Authority to assign a particular project or
work to the Consultant. The Authority shall assign projects or work at its sole discretion,
whether to Consultant or to other parties.

SCOPE OF WORK. The Consultant may be assigned by written attachment, a variety of tasks
or projects through this Agreement. Examples of types of projects that may be assigned are
set forth on the attached Appendix E. This list is not inclusive, and the types of projects that
may be assigned shall be at the discretion of Authority within the following categories:

A. Airport Planning Services

B. Environmental Consulting Services

C. Financial Consulting Services

D. Political Engagement, Community Involvement and Public Relations

Payment shall be made only for work performed at accepted industry standards and to the
reasonable satisfaction of Authority.

Authority will cooperate with Consultant, give access to project locations, respond to
Consultant's inquiries and pay the agreed price for work completed to Authority's satisfaction,
and in compliance with this Agreement, the applicable attachment or work order, and all
applicable specifications.

. TERM. The term of this Agreement shall be for the period commencing on November 20,
2018 and ending on November 19, 2022, a period of five (4) years with an option of two
additional one year extensions.

. TERMINATION. This Agreement may be terminated by either party upon sixty (60) days
written notice. Should one party substantially fail to perform in accordance with its term
through no fault of the other, the party not in breach may terminate this Agreement by giving
24 hours written notice to the other. In that event, the Consultant shall be compensated for
satisfactory services performed to the termination date by reimbursement of the Consultant's
expenses and payment of professional fees, subject to any claims or right of set off of
Authority. In no case, however, shall such payment or reimbursement exceed the agreed upon
maximum cost or fee as approved by the Authority.

At the complete discretion of the Authority, this Agreement may be suspended for any length
of time, or any project may be suspended with ten (10) days written notice to the Consultant
for any reason whatsoever. In that event, payment will be made as set out in the above

paragraph.

If a project that has already commenced is suspended for a period exceeding ninety (90) days,
the Authority hereby agrees to adjust the professional fees and expense budget of such project
if it is determined that such delay causes an increase in the cost of such project. In the event




of suspension, the Consultant shall be compensated for satisfactory services performed to the
suspension date by reimbursement of the Consultant's expenses and payment of professional
charges for work actually performed to that date. In no case, however, shall such payment or
reimbursement exceed the agreed upon fee as or maximum cost as approved by the Authority.
Any work done that is not included in the scope of work description shall not be paid for by
Authority unless it was authorized by a prior written assignment or work order, dated and duly
executed by the parties which identifies the work to be performed and the price to be paid.

PAYMENT FOR PROFESSIONAL SERVICES RENDERED. The Consultant shall invoice
the Authority monthly for services rendered and expenses incurred in the performance of duties
authorized by the Authority hereunder. Each invoice shall include hours worked by personnel
category for all professional fees and shall include project numbers, work order numbers, and
such other information that is required for FAA grant preparation and administration or
Authority, or City of Duluth operating procedures.

In accordance with FAA AC 150/5100-14E, the Authority may select to make payments to the
Consultant, by assigned work order, in a cost plus fixed payment or a fixed lump-sum payment
method, the latter being preferred. Normally, services provided under this Agreement shall be
invoiced on a fixed lump sum method.

If a cost plus fixed payment method is used, the following shall apply:

A. Direct Salary Costs. Direct salary cost is defined as the cost of salaries for time directly
chargeable to the project.

B. Overhead Costs. Overhead on direct salary costs includes all employee benefits both
statutory and those provided to employees under firm policy. For the first year of this
Agreement, overhead cost is hereby established at direct salary costs plus sixty-six point
zero three (66.03%) percent. Overhead costs shall include those costs associated both with
labor overhead and general and administrative overhead.

C. Direct Non-salary Costs. These costs shall be those directly associated with the project
and shall include, but not be limited to, costs of printing, travel, subsistence, phone,
overnight delivery, identifiable supplies, Photostatting, blueprinting, copies, mileage for
use of personal automobile, rental cars, special insurance other than is required herein,
subconsultants, and other costs which are identifiable and directly related to the project.
An administrative fee in an amount up to ten (10%) percent shall be added to subconsultant
charges on a project by project basis.

D. Fixed Payment. Fixed payment is defined as a percentage rate applied to the above to
determine payment for profit, willingness to serve, and assumption of responsibility. In
accordance with FAA AC 150-5100-14E, Fixed Payment is hereby established at fifteen
(15%) percent for the term of this Agreement.

E. Nonallowable Costs. The following shall not be included in the consultant’s overhead
costs: costs of amusement and social activities, contributions and donations, bad debits,
dividend provisions or payments for profit, interest on borrowed capital, bonus payment
for early completion of work, or any cost not allowed by government regulations or by law.

Consultant shall invoice Authority for work performed on a form acceptable to Authority, no
more frequently than once each month. Authority shall pay Consultant in accordance with the




invoice, for work satisfactorily performed, within 45 days of receipt of it, unless there is some
mistake, impropriety, inaccuracy or illegality in the invoice, which must be adjusted. In that
event, consultant will be promptly notified of the problem. Reimbursements for direct
expenses incurred by consultant in the performance of the work shall be included in the lump
sum amount. The maximum total cost to Authority for each assigned project shall be stated in
the attachment that assigns the project.

The Authority shall have access to Consultant's records for the purpose of accounting and audit.
Consultant shall keep adequate records for these purposes.

The Authority specifically reserves the right to approve, in advance, any overtime in excess of
forty (40) hours per week worked by Consultant's employees that would entail payment of an
overtime premium to employees. Under no circumstances shall the Consultant include any
overtime premium in the Authority's monthly invoice unless specifically authorized in writing.

If parties have separately agreed to a final price for an assigned project, this billing format shall
not operate to modify the completed project price, which is a price which cannot be exceeded
without prior written amendment to the assignment or work order.

FUNDING. The Consultant hereby understands that projects that may be assigned under this
Agreement shall have different funding sources including Federal, State, and local. The
Consultant hereby agrees to fully comply with all applicable grant assurances whether Federal
or state. Noncompliance with the Authority's grant assurances by the Consultant shall be cause
for immediate termination of this Agreement. This Section shall not operate as a waiver of
any other available remedies.

SUBCONTRACTORS AND SUBCONSULTANTS. During the term of this Agreement, the
Consultant may be required to retain the services of various subconsultants and/or
subcontractors to perform specialized services in accordance with the Consultant’s Statement
of Qualifications (SOQ) as submitted to the Authority on October 22, 2018. The Consultant
must furnish appropriate lien waivers to Authority whenever subconsultants and/or
subcontractors are used. The Authority reserves the right to require that the Executive Director
approve, in writing, all subconsultants and/or subcontractors retained to provide services under
this Agreement by the Consultant. The Authority reserves the right through its Executive
Director to instruct the Consultant to discontinue the services provided by any subconsultant
and/or subcontractor for any reason whatsoever. Upon written notification from the Executive
Director, the Consultant shall immediately discontinue such subconsultant and/or

subcontractor services.

Subconsultant and/or subcontractor services for engineering, architectural, soils testing,
environmental, and design services are specifically subject to provisions of the Section entitled

INSURANCE herein.

OTHER SERVICES. The Authority specifically reserves the right to award contracts to other
consultants for work on Projects for which the Consultant is providing services under this




10.

11.

12.

Agreement. Consultant shall fully cooperate with such other consultants and contractors in
such manner as the Authority may direct.

CONFLICT OF INTEREST. Consultant covenants that it presently has no interest and shall
not acquire any interest, directly or indirectly which would conflict in any manner or degree
with its performance under this Agreement. No person or company having such interest shall
be employed by it or any of its subcontractors or subconsultants.

CONFIDENTIALITY. Any reports, documents, questionnaires, records, information or data
given to or prepared or assembled by the Consultant under this Agreement which the Authority
requests to be kept confidential shall not be made available by the Consultant to any individual
or organization without prior written approval of the Authority. The provisions of this Section
shall survive the expiration or earlier termination of this Agreement.

Consultant shall comply with the Minnesota Government Data Practices Act, Minnesota
Statutes Chapter 13, as may be amended from time to time (the “Act”), as it applies to all data
provided by the Authority or the City under this Agreement and as it applies to all data created,
collected, received, stored, used, maintained or disseminated by Consultant under this
Agreement. The civil remedies of Minnesota Statutes Section 13.08 apply to the release of the
data referred to in this clause by Consultant. If Consultant receives a request to release the
data referred to in this clause, Consultant must immediately notify the Authority and consult
with the Authority as to how Consultant should respond to the request. Consultant shall hold
the Authority and the City, their officers, agents, servants and employees harmless from any
claims arising out of, resulting from or in any manner attributable to any violation of any
provision of the Act, including legal fees and disbursements.

OWNERSHIP OF RECORDS. All reports, records, drawings, specifications, questionnaires,
electronically stored data, photographs, or plans, acquired, produced, used or created for use
in projects relating to this Agreement and any rights of copyright for the same, shall be and
shall remain the property of the Authority. The Consultant assumes no liability for any use of
the drawings and specifications if used for any purpose other than that originally intended.
No reports, records, questionnaires, or software programs or other documents produced
specifically for projects under this Agreement shall be the subject of an application for
copyright by or on behalf of the Consultant.

INSURANCE. During the term of this Agreement, Consultant shall carry and maintain the

following insurance:

A. Worker's Compensation Insurance as required by State law with an all States endorsement
or specifically for the State of Minnesota.

B. Employers Liability Insurance (bodily injuries) with a limit of $1,500,000 per occurrence
with an insurance company authorized to write insurance in all States where the Consultant
will have employees located in the performance of its work covering its common law
liability to such employees.

C. Commercial General Liability Insurance and Automobile Liability Insurance covering all
owned and non-owned automobiles or vehicles used by or in behalf of Consultant with a




$1,500,000 combined single limit for bodily injury and/or property damage per occurrence
and an aggregate limit of $1,500,000.

D. Consultant shall carry Professional Liability Insurance providing coverage for acts, errors,
or omissions committed or alleged to have been committed by Consultant with a limit of
$1,500,000 per claim and an aggregate of $1,500,000.

The Authority and the City of Duluth, Minnesota, hereinafter referred to as the “City,” shall
be named as Additional Insureds under the Commercial General Liability and Automobile
Liability, or as an alternate, Consultant may provide Owners-Contractors Protective policy,
naming itself and the Authority and City. Consultant shall also provide evidence of Statutory
Minnesota Workers’ Compensation Insurance. Consultant to provide Certificate of Insurance
evidencing such coverage with 30-days notice of cancellation, non-renewal or material change
provisions included. The Authority does not represent or guarantee that these types or limits
of coverage are adequate to protect the Consultant’s interests and liabilities.

The form of the certificate shall contain an unconditional requirement that the insurer notify
the Authority without fail not less than 30 days prior to any cancellation, non-renewal or
modification of the policy or coverages evidenced by said certificate and shall further provide
that failure to give such notice to Authority will render any such change or changes in said
policy or coverages ineffective as against the Authority and the City.

It shall be the Consultant’s responsibility to pay any retention or deductible for the coverages
required herein.

Consultant may employ subcontractors or subconsultants as set out in this Agreement. In such
case, while the Consultant shall be responsible for general supervision, scheduling, and
administrative oversight of such subconsultants and subcontractors, each subconsultant or
subcontractor shall be required to provide its own Professional Liability Insurance or
Axchitects and Engineers Professional Liability Insurance and shall also be responsible to
directly indemnify the Authority and the City in the same manner as the Consultant as set forth
in Section 13 for any acts, errors or omissions committed by its employees, directors, officers,
agents, subcontractors or subconsultants directly employed by such subcontractor or
subconsultant, licensees, or invitee regardless of where the injury, death, or damage may occur.
Proof of such Professional Liability Insurance shall be required by the Consultant and
furnished to the Authority before any work shall commence by subconsultant or subcontractor.

Under no circumstances shall the above exclude Consultant from responsibility and liability
for acts, errors or omissions created or incurred by its own employees, its directors, officers,
or agents. Language acceptable to the Authority shall be included in contracts between the
Consultant and any subconsultants or subcontractors indicating the above.

13. HOLD HARMLESS. The Consultant agrees that it shall defend, indemnify and hold harmless
the Authority and the City of Duluth (the “City”) and their officers, agents, servants and
employees from any and all claims including claims for contribution or indemnity, demands,
suits, judgments, costs and expenses asserted by any person or persons including agents or
employees of the Authority, the City or the Consultant by reason of death or injury to person




14.

15.

16.

or persons or the loss or damage to property arising out of, or by reason of, any act, omission,
operation or work of the Consultant or its employees while engaged in the execution or
performance of services under this Agreement except to the extent that such indemnification
is specifically prohibited by Minnesota Statutes Chapter 337 or Section 604.21. The
Consultant shall not be required to indemnify the Authority or the City for claims of liability
arising out of the sole negligent or intentional acts or omission of the Authority or the City
but shall be specifically required to and agrees to defend and indemnify the Authority and the
City in all cases where claims of liability against the Authority or the City arise out of acts or
omissions which are passive or derivative of the negligent or intentional acts or omissions of
the Consultant, such as, but including but not limited to, the failure of the Authority or the
City to supervise, the failure to warn, the failure to prevent such acts or omission by the
Consultant and any other such source of liability. On ten days written notice from the
Authority, the Consultant shall appear and defend all lawsuits against the Authority and the
City growing out of such injuries or damages. The provisions of this Section and Section 12
shall survive the expiration or earlier termination of this Agreement.

REVIEW AND COORDINATION. To ensure adequate review and evaluation of the work
and proper coordination among interested parties, the Authority shall assign a staff member as
Project Coordinator for provision of services under this Agreement. The Consultant shall
assign a Project Coordinator who shall be directly responsible to the Authority's Project
Coordinator for communications, coordination, reporting, quality of work, project progress,
and other tasks as assigned. At the Authority's Project Coordinator's discretion, a reasonable
number of review meetings may be held at any given time with prior notification to the
Consultant's Project Coordinator. An agenda shall be established and copies of any material
to be discussed or reviewed forwarded to the Authority's Project Coordinator prior to the actual
meeting. With approval of the Authority's Project Coordinator, the consultant may include
such other firm employees who hold directly responsibility for projects being performed under
this Agreement and personnel from subconsultants and subcontractors as required in these
meetings. Project Coordinators for the Authority and the Consultant are as set forth below
unless otherwise designated to the other party in writing from time to time.

A. Authority Project Coordinator — Tom Werner

B. Consultant Project Coordinator — Kaci Nowicki

ESTIMATE OF COST. Since the Consultant has no control over the cost of labor, materials,
or equipment or over a contractor's methods of determining prices, or over competitive bidding
or market conditions, its opinions of probable cost provided as a service hereunder are to be
made on the basis of his/her experience and qualifications and represent it's best judgement as
a professional familiar with the construction industry. However, the Consultant cannot and
does not guarantee that proposals, bids, or the construction costs will not vary from opinions
of probable costs prepared by Consultant.

DISPUTES. Except as otherwise provided in this Agreement, any dispute concerning a
question of fact arising under this Agreement which is not disposed of by agreement shall be
decided by the Authority's Project Coordinator who shall reduce the decision to writing and




17.

18.

19.

20.

21.

22.

mail or otherwise furnish a copy thereof to the Consultant. The decision of the Authority's
Project Coordinator shall be final and conclusive unless, within fifteen (15) days from the date
of receipt, the Consultant mails or otherwise furnishes to the Authority's Project Coordinator a
written notice of appeal. The notice of appeal shall then be forwarded to the Authority. The
Authority's decision, subject to legal action by either party, shall be final and conclusive.

CONSULTANT'S EMPLOYEES/INDEPENDENT  CONTRACTOR. Consultant
understands and agrees that the Consultant and Consultant's employees, agents, servants, or
other personnel are not Authority or City employees. Consultant retains the power to direct
and supervise its employees. Consultant shall be solely responsible for payment of salaries,
wages payroll, taxes, unemployment benefits, or any other form of compensation or benefit to
Consultant or any of Consultant's employees, agents, servants, or other personnel performing
services or work specified herein, whether it be of a direct or indirect nature. Further, in that
regard, it is expressly understood and agreed that for such purposes neither Consultant or
Consultant's employees, agents, servants or other personnel shall be entitled to any Authority
or City payroll, insurance, unemployment, workmen's compensation, retirement or other
benefits whatsoever. The parties intend and agree that Consultant is and will operate as an
independent contractor, with control of the manner and means of completing the projects.

STATE OF MINNESOTA LAW APPLIES. This Agreement is made and delivered in the
State of Minnesota and shall be construed and enforced in accordance with the laws thereof.
Any action arising from any provision herein included shall be adjudicated in the State of
Minnesota in a jurisdiction that is acceptable to the Authority.

ENTIRE AGREEMENT/AMENDMENT. The drafting, execution and delivery of this
Agreement by the parties has been induced by no representations, statements, warranties or
agreements other than those expressed herein. This Agreement and any amendments, work
orders or appendices hereto embodies the entire understanding of the parties. The parties
hereto agree that these documents shall not be construed or interpreted in favor of either party
on the basis of draftsmanship or preparation. Any changes or amendments to this Agreement
must be in writing, dated, and duly executed by the parties.

NOTICES. All notices, requests, demands or other communications hereunder shall be in
writing, unless otherwise noted, and shall be deemed to have been duly given if delivered in
person, or after being deposited in the United States Mail, postage prepaid, or otherwise
actually delivered to the other party at the address listed above. Either party hereto may change
the address at which it receives written notices by so notifying the other party hereto in writing.

FAILURE TO EXERCISE. Neither any failure nor any delay on the part of the Authority in
exercising any right, power, or privilege hereunder or under any document or instrument
delivered or executed pursuant hereto, shall operate as a waiver hereof, nor shall a single or
partial exercise or the exercise of any other right, power or privilege.

AUDIT. During the term of this Agreement and for a period of one year following termination,
the Authority or its designated representative shall have the right to audit all Consultant's
records as they pertain to this Agreement for any reason whatsoever. The Authority shall give




23.

24.

25.

26.

the Consultant at least seventy-two (72) hours’ notice. All original records requested by the
Authority shall be delivered to the Authority at the location identified by the Authority staff at
Consultant’s sole expense and shall remain at that location until the audit is complete.
Consultant shall be responsible for removing the records at its sole expense upon direction
from the Authority. In the event that the records are not delivered to the Authority as called for
in this Agreement, the failure to comply shall be considered an element of Default in
accordance with Section 4 of this Agreement. Consultant will be provided five working days
to respond in writing to all findings of the audit following issuance by the Authority. In the
event that irregularities are found as a result of the audit, Consultant shall remit any monies
due the Authority within ten calendar days of the invoice date. In the event that there are
overpayments by Consultant, credits will be issued and applied against open invoices until the
credits are exhausted.

NO CONTINGENT FEES. The Consultant warrants that no person or legal entity has been
employed or retained to solicit or secure this Agreement upon an agreement or understanding
for a commission, percentage, brokerage or contingent fee excepting bona-fide employees or
bonafide established commercial or selling agencies maintained by Consultant for the propose
of securing business. For breach or violation of this warranty, the Authority shall have the
right to annul this Agreement without liability or in its discretion to deduct from payment to
Consultant the full amount of each commission, percentages, brokerage or contingent fee.

FEDERAL CONTRACT CLAUSES. If this Agreement is to be financed in part by federal
funds, certain federally required, contract clauses must be incorporated. These federally
required, contract clauses, included as ATTACHMENT C, are hereby incorporated herein and
made a part of this Agreement. The ATTACHMENT C incorporated is for a Non-Construction
Contract of (check as appropriate):

() $10,000 or less,

(_ ) $10,001 to $25,000,

() $25,001 to $100,000, or

(X ) $100,001 and over.
The term "contractor" as used in said ATTACHMENT C is understood to mean Consultant.
ASSIGNMENT. This Agreement, being intended to secure the personal service of the
individuals employed by and through whom Consultant performs work hereunder shall not be
assigned, sublet or transferred without the prior written consent of the Authority.
LAWS. Consultant agrees to comply with each and every applicable law, code, regulation or

order, including civil rights, anti-discrimination, drug free workplace, and environmental
protection laws.




DATED:

DULUTH AIRPORT AUTHORITY

BY

President

BY

Secretary

APPROVED AS TO FORM

BY
Assistant City Attorney

-10 -

SHORT ELLIOTT HENDRICKSON INC.

BY
Its

BY
Its




APPENDIX (A)

INSURANCE CERTIFICATE

-11 -




APPENDIX (B)

CONSULTANT CONTRACTURAL REQUIREMENTS
TITLE VI ASSURANCES

-12 -




Contractor Contractual Requirements
Title VI assurances

During the performance of this contract, the consultant, for itself, its assigns and successors in
interest, hereinafter referred to as the "consultant" agrees as follows:

1.

Compliance with Regulations. The consultant shall comply with Regulations relative to non-
discrimination in Federally assisted programs of the Department of Transportation, hereinafter
referred to as "DOT", Title 49, Code of Federal Regulations, Part 21, as they may be amended
from time to time, hereinafter referred to as the "Regulations", which are herein incorporated
by reference and made a part of this contract.

Non-discrimination. The consultant, with regard to the work performed by it during this
contract, shall not discriminate on the grounds of race, color, national origin, sex, disabilities,
or veteran's status in the selection and retention of subconsultants, subcontractors, including
procurement of materials and leases of equipment. The consultant shall not participate either
directly or indirectly in the discrimination prohibited by Section 21.5 of the Regulations,
including employment practices when the contract covers a program set forth in Appendix B
of the Regulations.

Solicitations for Subcontractors, including procurement of materials and equipment. In all
solicitations either by competitive bidding or negotiation made by the consultant for work to
be performed under a subcontract, including procurement of materials or leases of equipment,
each potential subcontractor or supplier shall be notified by the consultant of the contractor's
obligations under this contract and the Regulations relative to nondiscrimination on the
grounds of race, color, national origin, sex, disabilities, or veterans status.

Information and Reports. The consultant shall provide all information and reports required by
the Regulations of directives issues pursuant thereto and shall permit access to its books,
records, accounts, other sources of information, and its facilities as may be determined by the
Sponsor of the Federal Aviation Administration (FAA) to be pertinent to ascertain compliance
with such regulations, orders, and instructions. Where any information required of the
consultant is in the exclusive possession of another who fails or refuses to furnish this
information, the consultant shall so certify to the Sponsor or the FAA, as appropriate, and shall
set forth what efforts it has made to obtain the information.

Sanctions for Noncompliance. In the event of the consultant's non compliance with the non-
discrimination provisions of this contract, the Sponsor shall impose such contract sanctions as
it, or the FAA, may determine to be appropriate, including, but not limited to:

A. Withholding of payments to the consultant under the contract until the consultant complies,

and/or;
B. Cancellation, termination or suspension of the contract, in whole or in part.

Incorporations of Provisions. The consultant shall include the provisions of paragraphs 1
through 5 in every subcontract, including procurement of materials and leases of equipment,
unless exempt by the Regulations or directive issued pursuant thereto. The consultant shall

-13 -




take such action with respect to any subcontract or procurement as the Sponsor or the FAA
may direct as a means of enforcing such provisions including sanctions of noncompliance.
Provided, however, that in the event a consultant becomes involved in, or is threatened with,
litigation with a subcontractor or supplier as a result of such direction, the consultant may
request the Sponsor to enter into such litigation to protect the interests of the Sponsor and, in
addition, the consultant may request the United States to enter into such litigation to protect
the interests of the United States.

Minority Business Enterprise (MBE) Assurances

1. Policy. It is the policy of the DOT that minority business enterprises as defined in 49 CFR
Part 23 have the maximum opportunity to participate in the performance of contracts financed
in whole or in part with Federal funds under this contract and the consultant hereby agrees to
abide by these requirements.

2. MBE Obligation. The consultant agrees to ensure that minority business enterprises as defined
in 49 CFR Part 23 have the maximum opportunity to participate in the performance of contracts
and subcontracts financed in whole or in part with Federal funds provided under this contract.
In this regard, all contractors shall take all necessary and responsible steps in accordance with
49 CFR Part 23 to compete for and perform contracts. Contractors shall not discriminate on
the basis of race, color, national origin, sex, disability, or veteran's status in the award and
performance of this DOT assisted contract.

SHORT ELLIOTT HENDRICKSON INC.
By
Title

Date ,2018

-14 -




-15-




-16 -




APPENDIX (C)

CERTIFICATE OF PROJECT CONSULTANT

-17 -




Certificate of Project Consultant

I hereby certify that I am an officer and duly authorized representative of the firm of Short Elliott
Hendrickson Inc. and that neither the firm nor I have:

1. Employed or retained for a commission, percentage, brokerage, contingent fee, or other
consideration, any firm or person (other than employee working for the firm or me) to solicit
or secure this contract.

2. Agreed, as an express or implied condition for obtaining this contract, to employ or retain the
services of any firm or person in connection with carrying out the contract.

3. Paid or agreed to pay any firm, organization, or person (other than an employee working for
the firm) any fee, contribution donation, or consideration of any kind for, or in connection
with, procuring or carrying out the contract.

I acknowledge that this Certificate is to be furnished to the Federal Aviation Administration of the
United States, Department of Transportation, in connection with this contract involving use of
Airport Improvement Program funds and is subject to applicable State and Federal laws, both
criminal and civil.

SHORT ELLIOTT HENDRICKSON INC.
By
Title

Date ,2018

-18 -




APPENDIX (D)

FEDERAL FOREIGN TRADE RESTRICTION

-19 -




Federal Foreign Trade Restriction

The consultant, by submission of an offer and/or execution of a contract, certifies that it:

1. Is not owned or controlled by one or more citizens or nationals of a foreign country included
in the list of countries that discriminate against U.S. firms published by the office of the United
States Trade Representative.

2. Has not knowingly entered into any contract or subcontract for this or any project under this
contract with a contractor that is a citizen or national of a foreign country on said list, or is
owned or controlled directly or indirectly by one or more citizens or nationals of a foreign
country on said list.

3. Has not procured any product nor subcontracted for the supply of any product for use on the
project that is produced in a foreign country on said list.

Unless the restrictions of this clause are waived by the Secretary of Transportation in accordance
with 49 CFR 30.17, no contract shall be awarded to a contractor or subcontractor who is unable to
certify to the above. If the contractor knowingly procures or subcontracts for the supply of any
product or service of a foreign country on a said list for use on the project, the Federal Aviation
Administration may direct, through the Sponsor, cancellation of the contract at no cost to the
government.

Further, the consultant agrees that it will incorporate this provision for certification without
modification in each contract and in all lower tier subcontracts. The consultant may rely upon
certification of a prospective subcontractor unless it has knowledge that the certification is
erroneous.

The consultant shall provide immediate written notice to the Sponsor if the consultant learns that
its certification or that of a subcontractor was erroneous when submitted or has become erroneous
by reason of changed circumstances. The subcontractor agrees to provide immediate written
notice to the consultant, if, at any time, it learns that its certification was erroneous by reason of

changed circumstances.

This certification is a material representation of fact upon which reliance was placed when making
the award. If it is later determined that the consultant or a subcontractor knowingly rendered an
erroneous certification, the Federal Aviation Administration may direct, through the Sponsor,
cancellation of the contract or subcontract for default at no cost to the government.

This certification concerns a matter within the jurisdiction of an agency of the United States of
America and the making of a false, fictitious or fraudulent certification may render the maker
subject to prosecution under the Title 18, United States Code, Section 1001.

SHORT ELLIOTT HENDRICKSON INC.
By
Title

Date ,2018

-20 -




APPENDIX (E)

SCOPE OF WORK

-21 -




The following are examples of types of projects that may be assigned for the next five years. This
list is not inclusive, and the types of projects that may be assigned shall be at the discretion of

Authority:

Duluth International Airport (DLH)

1y
2)
3)
4)
5)
6)
7)
8)
9)

10)
11)
12)
13)

Airport Master Plan and Airport Layout Plan Update

Activity Forecast

Exhibit A Update

Aeronautical Property Development/Redevelopment Planning
Non-aeronautical Property Development/Redevelopment Planning

Wetland Delineations

Section 106 Assessments in Redevelopment Zones

Air Traffic Control Tower Siting Study

Movement Area and Ramp Congestion Analysis/Planning in the Vicinity of
the Terminal Ramp

General Aviation Ramp Capacity Analysis/Planning

Recognition of Stakeholder Development Plans (148th, Cirrus, AAR, etc.)
Noise Exposure Map and Noise Compatibility Program Update

Capital Financial Services as Directed by DAA

The above mentioned projects may require reporting to the FAA. It is understood that the
consultant would be responsible for all required reports to include but not limited to: Project
Quarterly Reports, DBE reporting, ACIP planning, AIP grant close out reports and other reports
as directed by the Authority Project Coordinator.

-2 .




MCCA FMKM 072008

TERMS:
o Length of Agreement
o November 20, 2018 — May 20, 2019.

O

Price Lump Sum
o $151,955 — Reimbursed by the 148" FW. This sum has been
reviewed and agreed to by the 148™ Civil Engineer.

Special Stipulations
o None

O

o Termination Summary
o Expires at end of term.

ARGEEMENT OVERVIEW (CONTEXT):

Project Description — This project consists of design and bidding services for the new
water, sanitary and electrical services to the 148th Fighter Wing of the Minnesota
National Guard (ANG), Munitions Storage Area (MSA) at the Duluth International Airport
(Airport). Upon completion, the existing power service will be abandoned or removed. A
new water service and a new sanitary sewer force main will be installed. The project will
include the installation of the new utilities and the abandonment or removal of the
existing power services. The existing utility corridor north of the perimeter road along the
south perimeter of the Airport will be utilized whenever possible. It may be necessary to
cross the perimeter road at several locations due to ledge rock.

The project will be funded by the ANG via a Military Construction Corporative
Agreement. (MCCA).

Project Deliverables — The project deliverables of this scope include the following:
Survey
Geotechnical Exploration
Erosion & Sediment Control
Construction Safety Phasing Plan
Engineers Report
Detailed estimate of cost
Bid phase services

I recommend approving this agreement.

Prepared by: Blaine Peterson




DocuSign Envelope ID: 1FA184C0-02D1-466F-B0D6-526F4865E704

Duluth Airport Authority
Duluth International Airport

PROFESSIONAL SERVICES AGREEMENT

WORK ORDER 2018-01
RS&H Project 214-1882-121
November 20, 2018

RS&H, INC. agrees to perform and complete the following services in accordance with the
terms and conditions of the Professional Services Agreement with the Duluth Airport
Authority, City of Duluth, Duluth, Minnesota (executed on March 17, 2015), all of which
terms and conditions are incorporated herein by reference:

Project Location: Duluth International Airport, Duluth, Minnesota.

Project Description: 148" Fighter Wing of the Minnesota Air National Guard MSA
Utility System Repair

Client Contact/Project Coordinator: Blaine Peterson, Operations Director

RS&H Project Manager: Darren K Christopher, PE

Scope of Services:  Provide Consulting Services for the Design and Bidding for
Munitions Storage Area (MSA) Utility System Repair at the Duluth
international Airport See Attachment “1” for further details.

Schedule: See Attachment “1” for details.

Total Compensation: Design and Bidding Services:

See Attachments 1 through 5 for Details.
Lump Sum - $151,955.00

Deliverables: See Attachment “1” for details

Project Meetings: See Attachment “1” for details

Other Considerations (if applicable): None at this time.

Effective Date of this Work Order:  November 20, 2018

148" MSA Work Order 2018-01

Page 1 of 2




DocuSign Envelope iD: 1FA184C0-02D1-466F-BOD6-526F4865E704

Duluth Airport Authority
Duluth International Airport

“CLIENT” “CONSULTANT”
DULUTH AIRPORT AUTHORITY RS&H, INC.
DocuSigned by:» ) ‘
BY: BY [BZCOSQISWASMCOA..
Kenneth D. Butler Christopher M. Greene
Typed Name Typed Name
Title: Title:
President Vice President
Attest: Attest: DocuSigned by:
Melanic Mclols
BY: BY: EFF831F7B43347D...
Craig W. Fellman Melanie L. Nichols
Typed Name Typed Name
Title: Title:
Secretary Corporate Secretary
[Corporate Seal] [CorporateDgeal]

148™ MSA Work Order 2018-01

Page 2 of 2




DocuSign Envelope ID: 1FA184C0-02D1-466F-B0D6-526F4865E704

ATTACHMENT 1

ATTACHMENT 1 - SCOPE OF WORK (Basic Services)
Duluth International Airport
Duluth Airport Authority
148t Fighter Wing of the Minnesota National Guard
MSA Utility System Repair
(Design & Bidding Documents Only)

l. PROJECT DESCRIPTION

This project consists of design and bidding services for the new water, sanitary and electrical
services to the 148" Fighter Wing of the Minnesota National Guard (ANG), Munitions Storage
Area (MSA) at the Duluth International Airport (Airport). Upon completion, the existing power
service will be abandoned or removed. A new water service and a new sanitary sewer force
main will be installed. The project will include the installation of the new utilities and the
abandonment or removal of the existing power services. The existing utility corridor north of
the perimeter road along the south perimeter of the Airport will be utilized whenever possible.
It may be necessary to cross the perimeter road at several locations due to ledge rock.

The project will be funded by the ANG via a Military Construction Corporative Agreement.
(MCCA).

The design tasks for the project is anticipated to include the following elements:

Excavation

Rock Removal/Blasting

Electrical Man/Hand Holes
Electrical Conduits

New Electrical Service (3,500%)
New 2” Sanitary Sewer Force Main (5,650’)
New 2" Water Service (5,500
Erosion & Sediment Control
Survey

Geotechnical Exploration
Construction Safety Phasing Plan
Detailed estimate of cost
Engineer's Report

Bid phase services

Water main replacement (2,500%)
Fire hydrants (10)

The project construction cost is estimated to be at approximately $1,900,000. As estimated by
the Air National Guard and confirmed by RS&H.

This work order will consist of engineering design and bidding services only. Construction phase
services will be provided through a separate work order.

MSA Utility System Repair 1
Duluth International Airport




DocuSign Envelope ID: 1FA184C0-02D1-466F-B0D6-526F4865E704

ATTACHMENT 1

PROJECT TASKS
Task 1: Preliminary Design (TYPE A Services)

Task 1.1
The Consultant will coordinate and attend one (1) pre-design meeting with the Airport staff
and ANG at the Airport to establish the preliminary design goals and methods.

Task 1.2
The Consultant will review, compile, and summarize available data related to the project.

The Consultant will review the Airport files and records to determine relevant information for
the Airport to provide, such as the airport master plan, airport layout plan, pavement
evaluation reports, aerial photogrammetry, survey data, previous design plans as-builts,
specifications, and geotechnical investigation reports.

Task 1.3
The Consultant will review available land survey data and develop a written land survey

scope of services for the Airport's authorized representative(s) review and approval prior to
assigning any such services. All surveying activities will be coordinated with the Airport and
ANG personnel prior to surveying, if requested. The Consultant will coordinate and review
with the surveying subconsultant specific geometric criteria required for topography, profile
and cross-sectional survey of existing drainage areas, above and below ground utilities,
existing site improvements, and definition of any obvious topographic depressions. All
survey data will be provided to the Airport, as required, in acceptable electronic format.

Task 1.4
The Consultant will prepare preliminary Plans, Estimate of Probable Construction Cost,

and Preliminary Engineer's Report. The preliminary design will evaluate and identify
specific elements of the project for a technically and economically sound project.
Preliminary design includes the predesign meeting, development of scope, and predesign
exhibits for the predesign meeting. The development of the preliminary design will be in
coordination with the Airport’s authorized representative(s).

Task 1.5

The Consultant will conduct in-house quality control review of the preliminary design Plans,
Estimate of Probable Construction Cost, and Engineer's Report prior to submittal to the
Airport's and the ANG’s authorized representative(s).

Task 1.6
The Consultant will submit and distribute preliminary Plans, Estimate of Probable
Construction Cost, and Engineer’s Report to the Airport and the ANG for review, comment,

and approval to proceed to 30% design.

Task 1.7

The Consultant will coordinate and attend one (1) meeting at the Airport to review the
preliminary design submittal. The Consultant will provide written minutes of the meeting
and distribute to all attendees within five (5) working days of the meeting. The Airport and
the ANG’s authorized representative(s) will provide any additional written comments to the
Consultant within two weeks of the design review meeting.

MSA Utility System Repair 2
Duluth International Airport




DocuSign Envelope ID: 1FA184C0-02D1-466F-B0OD6-526F 4865E704
ATTACHMENT 1

Task 1.8
Project Management/ANG Coordination - Consultant will manage and administer the project

in coordination with Airport staff and the ANG. Consultant will assign qualified individuals
or subconsultant to the project, and complete the efforts within a reasonable and agreeable
timeframe.

B. Task 2: 30% Design (Type A Services)

Task 2.1

The Consultant will review all comments received from the Airport's and the ANG'’s
authorized representative(s) from preliminary design submittal review and incorporate
applicable comments into Plans, specifications, Estimate of Probable Construction Cost,
and Engineer’'s Report. The Consultant will provide a written report on each comment on
how it will be incorporated into the documents, or why it was not applicable.

Task 2.2

The Consultant will prepare 30% Plans, outline specifications, Estimate of Probable
Construction Cost, and Engineer's Report. The 30% design submittal will include geometric
layout, site layout, site access, typical section, and plan and profile sheets. The development
of the 30% design documents will be in coordination with the Airport's and the ANG’s
authorized representative(s).

Task 2.3

The Consultant will conduct an in-house quality control review of the 30% design Plans,
outline specifications, Estimate of Probable Construction Cost, and Engineer’s Report prior
to submittal to the Airport and the ANG.

Task 2.4

The Consultant will submit and distribute 30% Plans, outline specifications, Estimate of
Probable Construction Cost, and Engineer's Report to the Airport and the ANG for review,
comment, and approval to proceed to 90% design.

Task 2.5

The Consuitant will coordinate and attend one (1) meeting at the Airport and the ANG to
review the 30% design submittal. The Consultant will provide written minutes of the meeting
and distribute to all attendees within five (5) working days of the meeting. The Airport’s and
the ANG'’s authorized representative(s) will provide any additional written comments to the
Consultant within two weeks of the design review meeting.

Task 2.6

Project Management/ANG Coordination- Consultant will manage and administer the project
in coordination with Airport staff and the ANG. Consultant will assign qualified individuals
or subconsultant to the project, and complete the efforts within a reasonable and agreeable

timeframe.
C. Task 3: 90% Design (Type B Services)
Task 3.1

The Consultant will review all comments received from the Airport’s and ANG’s authorized
representative(s) from 30% design submittal review and incorporate applicable comments

MSA Utility System Repair 3
Duluth International Airport




DocuSign Envelope 1D: 1FA184C0-02D1-466F-B0D6-526F4865E704
ATTACHMENT 1

into Plans, specifications, Estimate of Probable Construction Cost, and Engineer’s Report.
The Consultant will provide a written report on each comment on how it will be incorporated
into the documents, or why it was not applicable.

Task 3.2

The Consultant will prepare 90% Plans, specifications, Estimate of Probable Construction
Cost, and Engineer's Report. The Construction Safety Phasing Plan (CSPP) will also be
submitted at 90% per AC 150-5370-2G and ARP SOP 1.00. The development of the 90%
design documents will be in coordination with the Airport's and ANG’s authorized
representative(s) for their input.

Task 3.3

The Consultant will conduct an in-house quality control review of the 90% design Plans,
specifications, Estimate of Probable Construction Cost, and Engineer's Report prior to
submittal to the Airport and the ANG.

Task 3.4

The Consultant will submit and distribute 90% Plans, specifications, Estimate of Probable
Construction Cost, and Engineer’s Report to the Airport and ANG for review, comment, and
approval to proceed to 100% Bid Set design.

Task 3.5

The Consultant will coordinate and attend one (1) meeting at the Airport to review the 90%
design submittal. The Consultant will provide written minutes of the meeting and distribute
to all attendees within five (5) working days of the meeting. The Airport’s and the ANG’s
authorized representative(s) will provide any additional written comments to the Consultant
within two weeks of the design review meeting.

Task 3.6

Project Management/ANG Coordination- Consultant will manage and administer the project
in coordination with Airport staff and the ANG. Consultant will assign qualified individuals
or subconsultant to the project, and complete the efforts within a reasonable and agreeable
timeframe.

D. Task 4: 100% (Bid Set) Design (Type B Services)

Task 4.1

The Consultant will review all comments received from the Airport's and ANG’s authorized
representative(s) from 90% design submittal review and incorporate applicable comments
into Plans, specifications, Estimate of Probable Construction Cost, and Engineer's Report
and provide a written report on each comment on how it will be incorporated into the
documents, or why it was not applicable.

Task 4.2

The Consultant will prepare Bid Set Plans and technical specifications in accordance with
Airport, ANG, and City of Duluth standards. Specifications will be based on a unit price total
cost construction contract. Front-end specification requirements and format will be provided
by the Airport including, but not limited to, the advertisement to bid, legal requirements,
proposal, contract, bond forms, general provisions, labor rates, minority participation

MSA Utility System Repair 4
Duluth International Airport




DocuSign Envelope ID: 1FA184C0-02D1-466F-B0D6-526F4865E704
ATTACHMENT 1

requirements, special conditions, insurance requirements, and any other pertinent and or
required information.

Task 4.3

The Consultant will prepare Bid Set, Engineer's Report and Estimate of Probable
Construction Costs and conduct an in-house quality control review of the Bid Set design
Plans, specifications, Estimate of Probable Construction Cost, Engineer’s Report, and
related documentation prior to submittal fo the Airport and the ANG.

Task 4.4
The Consultant will provide and distribute 100% (Bid Set) design, Plans, specifications,
Engineer's Report, and Estimate of Probable Construction Cost to the Airport and ANG.

Comments requesting changes to the final Plans, specifications, or Engineer's Report after
this submittal to the Airport and ANG will be performed under a change order for additional
fime and cost, unless it is due to an error or omission by the Consultant.

Task 4.5

Project Management/ANG Coordination - Consultant will manage and administer the project
in coordination with Airport staff and the ANG. Consultant will assign qualified individuals
or subconsultant to the project, and complete the efforts within a reasonable and agreeable

timeframe.

E. Task 5: Phase VI - Bid/Award Services (Type B Services)

Task 5.1
The Consultant will prepare for and attend a pre-bid conference at the Airport, receive

comments, record the minutes of the conference and distribute to the Airport’s and ANG’s
authorized representative(s) and prospective contractors.

Task 5.2
The Consultant will review and respond to all bidder questions related to the project design
and requirements that are received through the proper channels and by the question

deadline.

Task 6.3

The Consultant will issue all required addenda to revise Plans, specifications and other
contract documents prepared by the Consultant in order to provide clarifications, correct
discrepancies, or correct errors and/or omissions. PDF copies of the addendums will be

sent to the Airport and ANG.

Task 5.4
The Consultant will attend the bid opening and collect/copy all bids for formal review.

Task 5.5

The Consultant will develop tabulation of all bids received and provide evaluation of
checking for correctness, qualifications of apparent low bidder, DBE participation goals,
etc., and make recommendations of award based solely on apparent low bidder. The
Consultant cannot and does not guarantee that bids will not vary from the estimate.

MSA Utility System Repair 5
Duluth International Airport



DocusSign Envelope ID; 1FA184C0-02D1-466F-B0OD6-526F4865E704

ATTACHMENT 1

Task 5.6

Project Management/ANG Coordination- Consultant will manage and administer the project
in coordination with Airport staff and the ANG. Consultant will assign qualified individuals
or subconsultant to the project, and complete the efforts within a reasonable and agreeable

timeframe.

M. PRESENTATIONS AND/OR MEETINGS

RS&H will prepare for and attend the following meetings:

Project Pre-design or Kick-off Meeting

Project 30% Design Review Meeting

Project 90% Design Review Meeting

Project 100% / Bid Document Review Meeting
Pre-Bid Conference at the Duluth International Airport
Bid Opening at City

IV. DELIVERABLES/SCHEDULE

The Consultant will provide the following deliverables:

1)
2)

3)

4)

Preliminary Plans, Estimate of Probable Construction Cost, and Engineer’s Report
(Electronic files and 2 Sets of reproducible documents)

30% Plans and Specifications, Estimate of Probable Construction Cost and
Preliminary Engineer's Report (Electronic files and 2 Sets of reproducible

~documents).

2 Sets of 90% Plans and Specifications, Estimate of Probable Construction Cost
and Engineer’s Report (Electronic files and 2 Sets of reproducible documents).

2 Sets of reproducible and electronic copies of 100% (Bid Set) Plans,
Specifications, Engineer's Report, Estimate of Probable Construction Cost
(Electronic files and 2 Sets of reproducible documents)

Preliminary Schedule:

1)

Project Pre-design or Kick-off Meeting —-NTP + 15 days

2) Project 30% Design Review Meetings — NTP + 45 days
3) Project 90% Design Review Meetings — NTP + 75 days
4) Project 100% / Bid Document Review Meeting — NTP + 105 days
5) Pre-Bid Conference at the Duluth International Airport — NTP + 135 days
6) Bid Opening at City — NTP + 155 days
MSA Utility System Repair 6

Duluth International Airport




DocuSign Envelope ID: 1FA184C0-02D1-466F-B0D6-526F4865E704 TACHMENT 2

RS&H

DESIGN / BIDDING PHASE SERVICES
Task 1: Preliminary Design

Task 2: 30% Design

Task 3: 90% Design

Task 4: 100% (Bid Documents) Design
Task 5: Bid Phase Services

TOTAL BASIC SERVICES LUMP SUM FEE

Duluth International Airport
MSA UTILITY SYSTEMS REPAIR

Fee Proposal Attachment 2

SUMMARY

$24,113 16.87% Type A Services
$25,721 16.93% Type A Services
$77,462  50.98% Type B Services
$17,245 11.35% Type B Services

$7,414 4.88% Type B Services

$151,955  100.00%




DocuSign Envelope ID: 1FA184C0-02D1-466F-B0D6-526F4865E704 TACHMENT 2 RS &H

Duluth International Airport
MSA UTILITY SYSTEMS REPAIR
Fee Proposal Attachment 2

DESIGN / BIDDING PHASE SERVICES

NIOR CIVIL Al ADMIN
SCOPE / TASK TITLE | Orricen | waGen | eomeer | enoween | enomen | ewomeen. | assitant TOTAL
FEE TYPE (Lump Sum)
Task 1: Preliminary Design
Task 1.1 Pre-Design Kickoff Meeting 3 4 2 9
Task 1.2 Data Collection & Records Review 4 4
Task 1.3 Land Survey 4 4
Task 1.4 Prepare Preliminary Design Documents
Plans
Cover Sheet 2 2
Sheet Index 2 2
Contract Layout Plan 2 2
Phasing Plan 1 4 5
Demolition Plan 3 3
Utility Plan Views 1 3 4
Electrical Plan view 1 4 3 8
Estimate of Probable Construction Cost 1 4 2 7
Preliminary Engineer's Design Report 4 4 8
Task 1.5 Quality Contro] Review 2 2 4 8
Task 1.6 Preliminary Design Submittal 4 2 6
Task 1.7 Preliminary Design Review Meeting 4 4 1 9
Task 1.8 Project Management / ANG Coordination 2 7 9
TOTAL HOURS 4 24 ] 4 51 0 7 90
RATE $81.74 $59.03 $49.65 $43.91 $33.31 $45.59 $23.62 $42.04
TOTAL DIRECT LABOR $ $327 $1,417 $0 $176 $1,699 $0 $165 3,784
OVERHEAD @ | 174.86% 6,616
PROFIT @ 15% 1,560
TOTAL BURDENED LABOR @ 3.16 $11,959
OTHER DIRECT COSTS
SPECIALTY SUBCONSULTANTS
Geotechnical Subconsultant American Engineering & Testing $6,000
Survey/Sewer/Water Subconsultant Karvakko Engineering $6,000
TOTAL SPECIALTY SUBCONSULTANT COST $12,000
PRINTING $/sheet  #sheets #sets
$0
Plans (11x17) $1.00 10 2 20
Reports/Specifications (8.5x11) $0.25 100 2 50
TOTAL PRINTING COST] 70
POSTAGE/DELIVERY $/package #packages
Drawings 30.00 1 30
Specificalions 15.00 1 15
Other 10.00 1 10
TOTAL POSTAGE/DELIVERY COST 55
TRAVEL #people #days Aifare@ Car@ Lodging @ PerDiem @
Pre-Design Kickoff Meeting Q 2 $800 $65 $125 $50 0
Field Investigation 0 2 $800 $65 $125 50 0
Design Review Meeting 0 2 $800 $65 $125 50 0
TOTAL TRAVEL COST Y
MILEAGE $/mile #miles
$0.57 50 $29
TOTAL OTHER DIRECT COSTS $12,154
Total Proposed Fee for: Task 1: Preliminary Design $24,113

10f6




DocuSign Envelope |1D: 1FA184C0-02D1-466F-B0OD6-526F4865E704 TACHMENT 2 R S
SCOPE / TASK Tn-LE ZROJFHEEC; PROJECT. SENIOR CIVIL. ELECTRICAL JUNIOR CIVIL - | { STRUCTURAL Asg?s’::'l:]n' TOTAL
Task 2: 30% Design
Task 2.1 Incorporate Preliminary Design Review Comments 3 4 5 12
Task 2.2 Prepare 30% Preliminary Design Documents
Plans
Cover Sheet 2 2
Sheet Index / Summary of Quantities 2 2
Contract Layout Plan 2 2
General Notes 2 2
Safety & Security Notes and Details 2 2
Phasing Plan 1 4 5
Demolition Plan 4 4
Electrical Layout Plan 4 3 7
Outline Technical Specifications 2 2 4
Estimate of Probable Construction Cost 1 4 4 9
Preliminary Engineer's Design Report 2 8 10
Task 2.3 Quality Control Review 2 4 4 10
Task 2.4 30% Preliminary Besign Submittal 2 4 8 14
Task 2.5 30% Design Review Meeting 4 4 4 12
Task 2.6 Project Manag t / ANG Coordination 2 7 9
TOTAL HOURS 4 26 4] 4 51 0 21 106
RATE $81.74 $59.03 $49.65 $43.91 $33.31 $45.59 $23.62 $39.93
TOTAL DIRECT LABOR $ $327 $1,535 $0 $176 $1,699 $0 $496 4,232
OVERHEAD @ | 174.86% 7,401
PROFIT @ 15% 1,745
TOTAL BURDENED LABOR @ 3.16 $13,378
OTHER DIRECT COSTS
SPECIALTY SUBCONSULTANTS
Survey/Sewer/Water Subconsultant Karvakko Engineering $12,000,
TOTAL SPECIALTY SUBCONSULTANT COST $12,000
PRINTING $/sheet  #sheets #sets
Plans (11x17) $1.00 30 2 $60
Reports/Specifications (8.5x11) $0.25 400 2 $200
TOTAL PRINTING COST] $260
POSTAGE/DELIVERY $/package #packages
Drawings 30.00 1 30
Specifications 15.00 1 15
Other 10.00 1 10
TOTAL POSTAGE/DELIVERY COST 55
TRAVEL #people #days Aiffare @ Car@ Lodging @ PerDiem @
Design Review Meeting w/ Airport 0 0 $800 $65 $125 $50 0
Design Review Meeting w/ ANG 0 0 $800 $65 $125 $50 0
TOTAL TRAVEL COST 0
MILEAGE $/mile #miles
$0.57 50 $29
TOTAL OTHER DIRECT COSTS $12,344
Total Proposed Fee for: Task 2: 30% Design $25,721

20f6




DocuSign Envelope ID: 1FA184C0-02D1-466F-B0D6-526F4865E704

TACHM
DESIGN / BIDDING PHASE SERVICES

RSsH

Total Proposed Fee for:

SCOPE / TASK TITLE ZRFLF)]JCE:; ‘] PROJECT SENIOR CIVIL ELECTRICAL J::iGIOIzECEI\‘I;L S‘g;lé(;‘:’g:RAL A,sg%;:'}n' TOTAL
Task 3: 90% Design
Task 3.1 Incorporate 30% Design Review Comments 3 4 8 16
Task 3.2 Prepare 90% Design Documents
Plans
Cover Sheet 1 1
Sheet Index / Summary of Quantities 1 1
Contract Layout Plan 1 1
General Notes 1 1
General Legend & Abbreviations 1 1
Safety & Security Notes and Details 1 1
Horizontal & Vertical Controf Pian 1 1
Airspace Layout Plan 2 2
Phasing Plan 1 2 3
Schematic Construction Sequence 2 2
Geotechnical Boring Layout & Logs 1 2 3
Demolition Plan 1 5 6
Erosion & Sedimentation Contro! Plan 2 2
Erosion & Sedimentation Control Details 2 2
Electrical General Notes & Legend 4 4
Electrical Demolition Plan 4 2 6
Electrical Geometry Plan 4 2 6
Electrical Details 4 4
Electrical Details 4 4
Technical Specifications 2 2
Up-Front Contract Documents 2 2
Estimate of Probable Construction Cost 1 4 5
Engineer's Design Report 4 4 8
Draft Construction Safety Phasing Plan (CSPP) 2 5 7
Task 3.3 Quality Control Review 2 8 4 14
Task 3.4 90% Design Submittal 4 4 4 12
Task 3.5 90% Design Review Meeting 4 4 8
Task 3.6 Project Management / ANG Coordination 2 6 8.
TOTAL HOURS 4 39 0 24 53 0 12 132
RATE $81.74 $59.03 $49.65 $43.91 $33.31 $45.59 $23.62 $43.42
TOTAL DIRECT LABOR § $327 $2,302 $0 $1,054 $1,765 $0 $283 $5,732
OVERHEAD @ | 174.86% $10,023
PROFIT @ 15.0% $2,363
TOTAL BURDENED LABOR @ 3.16 $18,118
OTHER DIRECT COSTS
PRINTING $/sheet  #sheets #sets
Plans (11x17) $1.00 30 2 $60.00
Reports/Specifications (8.5x11) $0.25 400 2 $200.00
TOTAL PRINTING COST $260.00
SPECIALTY SUBCONSULTANTS
Survey/Sewer/Water Subconsultant Karvakko Engineering $59,000
TOTAL SPECIALTY SUBCONSULTANT COST $59,000
POSTAGE/DELIVERY $/package #packages
Drawings $30.00 1 30
Specifications 15.00 1 15
Other 10.00 1 10
TOTAL POSTAGE/DELIVERY COST $55
TRAVEL #people #days Aifare @ Car@ Lodging @ PerDiem @
Design Review Meeting (1} 0 0 $800 $65 $125 $50 $0
Design Review Meeting (2) 0 0 $800 $65 $125 $50 $0
$0
TOTAL TRAVEL COST 30
MILEAGE $/mile #miles
$0.57 50 $29
TOTAL OTHER DIRECT COSTS $59,344
Task 3: 90% Design $77,462

30f6




DocuSign Envelope ID: 1FA184C0-02D1-466F-B0D6-526F4865E704 TACHM )
DESIGN / BIDDING PHASE SERVICES RSsH

SCOPE / TASK vn TLE Z’:::JCEECJ PROJECT. SENIOR CViL ELECTRICAL JUNIOR CIVIL -] STRUCTURAL Asgj[)s}":'.:n TOTAL
Task 4: 100% (Bid Documents) De31gn
Task 4.1 Incorporate 90% Design Review Cc 4 4 4 12
Task 4.2 Prepare 100% (Bid Documents) Design Documents
Plans
Cover Sheet 1 1
Sheet Index / Summary of Quantities 1 1
Contract Layout Plan 1 1
General Notes 1 1
General Legend & Abbreviations 1 1
Safety & Security Notes and Details 1 1
Horizontal & Vertical Control Plan 1 1
Airspace Layout Plan 1 1
Phasing Plan 1 3 4
Schematic Construction Sequence 2 2
Geotechnical Boring Layout & Logs 2 2]
Demolition Plan 2 4 6
Erosion & Sedimentation Control Plan 5 5
Erosion & Sedimentation Control Details 5 5
Electrical General Notes & Legend 1 1
Electrical Demolition Plan 4 1 5
Electrical Geometry Pian 4 1 5
Electrical Details 4 1 5
Electrical Details 4 1 5
Technical Specifications 2 2 2 6
Up-Front Contract Documents 2 4 6
Estimate of Probable Construction Cost 2 4 2 8
Final Engineer’s Design Report 2 4 2 8
Final Construction Safety Phasing Plan (CSPP) 2 2 4
Task 4.3 Quality Control Review 4 4 8
Task 4.4 100% (Bid Set) Design Submittal 4 8 4 16
Task 4.5 Project Manag t/ ANG Coordination 2 8 10,
TOTAL HOURS 2 33 0 20 58 0 18 131
RATE $81.74 $59.03 $49.65 $43.91 $33.31 $45.59 $23.62 $40.82
TOTAL DIRECT LABOR $ $163 $1,948 $0 $878 $1,932 $0 $425 $5,347
OVERHEAD @ | 174.86% $9,350
PROFIT @ 15.0% $2,205
- TOTAL BURDENED LABOR @ 3.16 $16,901
OTHER DIRECT COSTS
PRINTING $/sheet  #sheets #sets
Plans (11x17) $1.00 30 2 $60.00
Reports/Specifications (8.5x11) $0.25 400 2 $200.00
TOTAL PRINTING COST| $260.00
POSTAGE/DELIVERY $/package #packages
Drawings 30.00 1 30
Specifications 16.00 1 15
Other 10.00 1 10
TOTAL POSTAGE/DELIVERY COST 55
TRAVEL #people #idays Aifare @ Car@ Lodging @ PerDiem @
Design Review Meeting (1) 0 0 $800 $65 $125 $50 0
Design Review Meeting (2) 0 0 $800 $65 $125 $50 0
0
TOTAL TRAVEL COST $0
MILEAGE $/mile #miles
$0.57 50 $29
TOTAL OTHER DIRECT COSTS $344
Total Proposed Fee for: Task 4: 100% (Bid Documents) Design $17,245

40f6




DocuSign Envelope ID: 1FA184C0-02D1-466F-B0D6-526F4865E704 TACHMEN V
DESIGN / BIDDING PHASE SERVICES RS&H

SCOPE / TASK Tl TLE FPROJECT PROJECT. SENIOR CiVIL ELECTRICAL JUNIOR GVIL | ‘STRUCTURAL ADMIN TOTAL
OFFICER ASSISTANT.
Task 5: Bid Phase Services
Task 5.1 Pre-Bid Meeting 8 8|
Task 5.2 Respond to Bidder Questions 4 4 4 12
Task 5.3 Issue Addenda 2 4 8 14
Task 5.4 Attend Bid Opening 4 4
Task 6.5 Bid Tabulation andAward Recommendation 4 4 8
Task 5.6 Project Management / Ang Coordination 1 4
TOTAL HOURS 1 26 0 0 8 0 16 46
RATE $81.74 $59.03 $49.65 $43.91 $33.31 $45.59 $23.62 $49.15
TOTAL DIRECT LABOR $ $82 $1,535 $0 $0 $266 $0 $378 $2,261
OVERHEAD @ | 174.86% $3,954
PROFIT @ 15.0% $932
. TOTAL BURDENED LABOR @ 3.16 $7,147
OTHER DIRECT COSTS
PRINTING $/sheet  #sheets isets
Plans (11x17) $1.00 30 2 $60.00
Reports/Specifications (8.5x11) $0.25 400 2 $200.00
TOTAL PRINTING COST) $260.00
POSTAGE/DELIVERY $/package #packages
Drawings $30.00 0 0
Specifications 15.00 0 0
Other 10.00 4] 0
TOTAL POSTAGE/DELIVERY COST 0
TRAVEL #people #days Aifare @  Car@ lodging @ PerDiem @
Pre-Bid Meeting 0 0 $800 $65 $125 $50 $0
Bid Opening 0 0 $800 $65 $125 $50 $0
30
TOTAL TRAVEL COST $0
MILEAGE $/mile #miles
$0.57 13 $7
TOTAL OTHER DIRECT COSTS $267
Total Proposed Fee for: Task 5: Bid Phase Services $7,414
TOTAL PROPOSED FEE FOR: DESIGN /BIDDING PHASE SERVICES $151,955

50f6







DocuSign Envelope ID: 1FA184C0-02D1-466F-B0D6-526F4865E704
ATTACHMENT 4

KARVAKKO

Engineering, Architecture, & Surveying

8/14/2018

Darren Christopher
RS&H
Duluth International Airport

RE; Proposal to Provide Civil Design and Bidding Services for the Duluth International Airport Utility Extension.

Mr. Darren Christopher:

Thank you for the opportunity to submit a proposal for Design and Bidding Services for the Duluth International Airport
Utility Extension Project.

Attached you will find a proposed scope of services along with those items specifically not included as a part of this
proposal (Attachment A). Following Attachment A is our 2018 Schedule of Rates.

If you have any questions regarding this proposal, or need to discuss scope and/or scheduling, please do not hesitate
to contact me at 218-444-8004

If you are acceptable to this proposal, please sign below and return to our office so an agreement may be prepared and
executed prior to any work commencing.

Thank you again for the opportunity to submit this proposal.

Sincerely,
Karvakko, P.A. Accepted by RS&H

Darren Christopher

Mike Karvakko, PE By:
Principal

Attachment A
2018 Schedule of Rates

www.karvakko.com




DocuSign Envelope 1D: 1FA184C0-02D1-466F-B0D6-526F4865E704
ATTACHMENT 4

ATTACHMENT A

Duluth International Airport Utility Extension
RS&H

PROJECT DESCRIPTION

The CONSULTANT agress to provide Civil Design and Bidding services required for the extension/construction
of water and sewer utilities at the Duluth International Airport

The purpose of this project is to complete a preliminary design to identify the preferred location for the sewer
water line locations. Upon completion of the initial preliminary design phase, Karvakko will begin with civil
final design services to prepare the “biddable” construction documents, including all necessary drawings
and technical specifications for construction.

With separate approval from the Client, Karvakko will provide topographical survey services, on behalf of the
Client.

A SCOPE OF SERVICES

BASIC SERVICES
For purposes of this Project, Basic Services to be provided by the CONSULTANT are as follows:

TASK I PRELIMINARY DESIGN

1.0 Project Management/Admin
1.1 Provide coordination with Karvakko staff and RS&H staff.

2.0  Schematic Design/Layout
2.1 Karvakko to provide pathway and design options for layout of extended utilities

3.0  Preliminary Megtings
3.1 Karvakko to attend a maximum of (1) preliminary design meetings with project team to discuss project
specific requirements.
31,1 Mestings assumed to be in the city limits of Duluth.

40  Permit [dentification
41  Karvakko to assist with civil-related permits for this project. Permit fees to be paid for by others.

TASK 2. DESIGN PHASE

5.0 Project Management/Admin
51 Provide coordination with Karvakko staff and RS&H staff.




DocusSign Envelope ID: 1FA184C0-02D1-466F-B0D6-526F4865E704
ATTACHMENT 4

6.0  Design & Drafting
6.1 Preliminary Drawings including the following design sheets:

C1.0 Title Sheet

(2.0 Notes & Legend

3.0 Typical Sections & Details
C4.0 Erosion Control & SWPPP
5.0 Removals

(6.0 Utility Plan & Profile

C7.0 Lift Station Details (if needed)
(8.0 Site Plan & Restoration

6.2 Preliminary Civil Technical Specifications Only

6.3 Sewer and Water Main Design

6.4  Final Civil Technical Specifications Only

6.5 Final Drawings including the following design sheets:

G1.0 Title Sheet

(2.0 Notes & Legend

(3.0 Typical Sections & Details
C4.0 Erosion Control & SWPPP
5.0 Removals

(6.0 Utility Plan & Profile

(7.0 Lift Station Details (if needed)
(8.0 Site Plan & Restoration

7.0 Design Meetings
741 Karvakko to attend a maximum of (2) design meetings with project team to discuss project specific

requirements.
7.11  Meetings assumed to be conference call type, or travel time & expense to be billed at
Karvakko’s Current Standard Schedule of Rates (Attached).

TASK 3. BIDDING

8.0  Answer Bidders' Questions
8.1 During the bidding process, Karvakko will be available to clarify bidding issues with contractors and

suppliers, and for consultation with the various entities associated with the project.

9.0  Furnish Addenda
9.1 Karvakko shall issue addenda as appropriate to interpret, clarify, or change the bidding documents
as required by the Sponsor, State, or FAA. Karvakko will assist RS&H with civil related addenda
items. Addenda assistance will be made available to RS&H for transmission to plan holders. Any
addenda that are generated as a sole result of the Sponsors error or omission will be considered as




DocuSign Envelope ID: 1FA184C0-02D1-466F-BOD6-526F4865E704
' ATTACHMENT 4

extra services and the Consultant shall be reimbursed for this effort as an amendment to this
contract.

ADDITIONAL SERVICES

Consulting services performed other than those authorized under the Basic Services section shall not be
considered part of the Basic Services and may be authorized by the Client as Additional Services. Additional
Services consist of those services, which are not generally considered to be Basic Services; or exceed the
requirements of the Basic Services; or are not definable prior to the commencement of the project; or vary
depending on the technique, procedures or schedule of the project contractor. Additional services may
consist of thefollowing:

Additions to the project outside of this scope.

Topographic Surveying of Project Area

Uploading and performing bid solicitation & opening services

Hosting a pre-bid meeting.

Attendance of the bidopening.

Additional Field Investigation required beyond those specified.

Completion of additional special studies not identified in Section A.
Attendance of additional meetings beyond those identified in the above scope.
Construction Administration and Observation Services.

0. Al other services not specifically identified in Section A.

il e

=10 0N W

B. SCHEDULE
The following is a schedule as we understand it. If there are changes to the schedule, at no fault of Karvakko,
then the time for completion of services shall be adjusted.

e Preliminary Plans & Specifications Fall/Winter 2018
e Final Plans & Specifications Fall/Winter 2018
e Bidding * Per Client
C. FEE
Fees associated with the aforementioned Tasks will be invoiced monthly based on progress per the following
lump sum(s):
Total Fee for Tasks 1,2 & 3 $72,000.00
Add-On Topoaraphical Survey Fee $5,000.00

C. OWNER'S RESPONSIBILITIES

Owner’s responsibilities are as follows:

Specification requirements (Using City, State, FAA or Guard)




DocuSign Envelope ID: 1FA184C0-02D1-466F-B0D6-526F4865E704
ATTACHMENT 4

Geotechnical Investigation/Report

Hydrant flows near the project area

Preferred water/sanitary material

Coordination for removal/relocation of power or gas lines
Design or coordination of flammable waste separators




DocuSign Envelope ID: 1FA184C0-02D1-466F-B0D6-526F4865E704
ATTACHMENT 4

KARVAKKO

2018 SCHEDULE OF RATES
Effective January 1, 2018 to December 31, 2018

Fees
Std Hourly Rate

Principal ..o
Professional (VI)__

Professional (1)
Technician 1l
Technician 1i
Technician |
Sr. Clerical
Clerical ...
Professional; Engineer, Architect, Surveyor, Environmental Specialist, Landscape Architect, Planner or Project Manager.
Technician; Draftsman, Field Tech, Design Tech, Survey Tech

All work beyond 40 hours per work week (Monday thru Saturday) for an employee shall be invoiced at rate of 1.50 times the
standard rate identified above. Any and all work completed on Sunday’s or a federally recognized Holiday shall be invoiced at a
rate of 2.00 times the standard rate identified above.

Reimbursables

Field/Office Expenses and Equipment 15% of Fee (not including subs)
Subconsultants Cost plus 10%

Bemidji Office: 2300 Bemidji Ave N, Suite 101 - Bemidji, MN 56601 — P: (218) 444-8004, F: (218) 444-8562
www.karvakko.com - info@karvakko.com




DocuSign Envelope ID: 1FA184C0-02D1-466F-BOD6-526F4865E704
ATTACHMENT &

August 16,2018

Mr. Darren Christopher, PE
RS&H

4525 Airport Approach Road
Duluth, MN 55804

Re:  Proposal for Drilling Services
Proposed Utility Installation
Duluth, Minnesota
AET Proposal No. 07-20124

Dear Mr. Christopher:

American Engineering Testing, Inc. (AET) is pleased to submit a proposal for the
proposed utility project in Duluth, Minnesota. In this proposal, we present our
understanding of the project, an outline of the scope of services we are to provide, a
schedule for our services, and an estimate of our fees.

Project Information

RS&H is requesting flight auger borings to determine subgrade conditions for utility
installation. We understand the waterline will require a 7-foot deep trench. The borings
will be completed between the fire station and missile storage building at approximately
100-foot intervals. No soil sampling has been requested.

Scope of Services

Field Exploration

AET will contact Gopher State One Call to clear public utilities prior to drilling. We
request any private utilities would be marked by others. We understand that RS&H will
stake the borings and provide elevations. Due to airport site restrictions, we request that
RS&H provide all applicable access permissions and/or escorts for our crew.

You have requested flight auger (FA) borings to a depth of 10 feet or refusal. If we
encounter refusal we will not attempt an offset boring. We will perform as many FA
borings as time allows in 2 business days, up to 50 FA borings. We estimate we can
complete between 35 and 45 borings.

We assume the borings will be accessible with a rubber-tired all-terrain drill rig. We will
drill the borings using a 6-inch flight auger. No soil sampling has been requested for this

project. The drill crew will record refusal depths and any groundwater encountered.

Boreholes will be sealed and reported per state requirements.




DocusSign Envelope ID: 1FA184C0-02D1-466F-B0D6-526F4865E704
ATTACHMENT 5

Laboratory Testing
No laboratory testing has been requested for this project.

Report

We will present a factual report presenting the conditions encountered, a table of refusal
depths, and the drilling methods. The factual report will not include any boring logs or
opinions and recommendations.

Schedule

As discussed, we anticipate drilling to begin in approximately 4-6 weeks. Drilling will
take 2 business days. We will submit a final data report within 7 business days of
completion of drilling.

Fees

For the scope of services outlined above, we will charge a lump sum fee of $6,000. If
additional borings or deeper borings are authorized, or if laboratory testing is requested,
the increase in our fees will be in accordance with the unit prices shown on the enclosed
2018 fee schedule.

Environmental Concerns

This proposal is presented for engineering services to evaluate the structural properties of
the soils at the specified site. This proposal does not cover an environmental assessment
of the site; environmental testing of the soil or groundwater; a wetland assessment; or
consultation on lead, mold, asbestos, silica, or radon. If you wish to have us provide these
additional services, please contact us.

Terms and Conditions
Work will be completed in accordance with terms and conditions outlined in the RS&H
Master Subcontract Agreement dated May 19, 2010.

Acceptance

AET requests written acceptance of this proposal in the Proposal Acceptance box below,
but the following actions shall constitute your acceptance of this proposal together with
the Terms and Conditions and Amendments: 1) issuing an authorizing purchase order for
any of the Services described above, 2) authorizing AET’s presence on site or 3) written
or electronic notification for AET to proceed with any of the Services described in this
proposal. Please indicate your acceptance of this proposal by signing below and
returning a copy to us. When you accept this proposal, you represent that you are
authorized to accept on behalf of the Client.




DocuSign Envelope ID: 1FA184C0-02D1-466F-BOD6-526F4865E704
ATTACHMENT 5
Mr, Darren Christopher
Proposed Utility Installation
AET Proposal No. 07-20124
August 16, 2018
Page 3 of 3

American Engineering Testing, Inc.

Chelsea N. Buck, GIT _“Tonathan Gabriel
Staff Geologist Drilling Supervisor

Acceptance By:

Signature:

Printed Name:

Representing:

Date:

Enclosures:
2018 Geotechnical Fee Schedule




DocuSign Envelope ID: 1FA184C0-02D1-466F-B0D6-526F4865E704
ATTACHMENT 6

FEDERAL CONTRACT PROVISIONS FOR A/E AGREEMENTS

ALL REFERENCES MADE HEREIN TO “CONTRACTOR”, “PRIME CONTRACTOR”, “BIDDER”,
AND “OFFEROR” SHALL PERTAIN TO THE ARCHITECT/ENGINEER (A/E).

ALL REFERENCES MADE HEREIN TO “SUBCONTRACTOR”, “SUB-TIER TONTRACTOR” OR
“LOWER TIER CONTRACTOR”SHALL PERTAIN TO ANY SUBCONSULTANT UNDER CONTRACT
WITH THE A/E.

ALL REFERENCES MADE HEREIN TO “SPONSOR” AND “OWNER” SHALL PERTAIN TO THE
STATE, CITY, AIRPORT AUTHORITY OR OTHER PUBLIC ENTITY EXECUTING CONTRACTS
WITH THE A/E.

ACCESS TO RECORDS AND REPORTS
Reference: 2 CFR §200.333, 2 CFR §200.336, and FAA Order 5100.38

The contractor must maintain an acceptable cost accounting system. The contractor agrees toprovide the
Sponsor, the Federal Aviation Administration, and the Comptroller General of the United Statesor any of
their duly authorized representatives access to any books, documents, papers, and records of the
contractor which are directly pertinent to the specific contract for the purpose of making audit,
examination, excerpts and transcriptions. The contractor agrees to maintain all books, recordsand reports
required under this contract for a period of not less than three years after final payment is made and all
pending matters are closed.

CIVIL RIGHTS — GENERAL
Reference: 49 USC §47123

The contractor agrees that it will comply with pertinent statutes, Executive Orders and such rules as are
promulgated to ensure that no person shall, on the grounds of race, creed, color, national origin, sex, age,
or disability be excluded from participating in any activity conducted with or benefiting from Federal
assistance.

This provision binds the contractor and sub-tier contractors from the bid solicitation period through the
completion of the contract. This provision is in addition to that required of Title VI of the Civil Rights Act of
1964.

CIVIL RIGHTS - TITLE VI ASSURANCE
Reference: 49 USC § 47123 and FAA Order 1400.11
A) Title V1 Solicitation Notice

The (Name of Sponsor), in accordance with the provisions of Title Vi of the Civil Rights Actof 1964 (78 Stat.
252,42 U.S.C. §§ 2000d to 2000d-4) and the Regulations, hereby notifiesall bidders that it will affirmatively
ensure that any contract entered into pursuant to this advertisement, disadvantaged business enterprises
will be afforded full and fairopportunity to submit bids in response to this invitation and will not be
discriminated against onthe grounds of race, color, or national origin in consideration for anaward.




DocuSign Envelope ID: 1FA184C0-02D1-466F-B0D6-526F4865E704
ATTACHMENT 6

B) Title VI Clauses for Compliance with Nondiscrimination Requirements

During the performance of this contract, the contractor, for itself, its assignees, and successors in interest
(hereinafter referred to as the “contractor”) agrees asfollows:

1) Compliance with Regulations: The contractor {(hereinafter includes consultants) willcomply with the
Title VI List of Pertinent Nondiscrimination Acts and Authorities, as they maybe amended from time to
time, which are herein incorporated by reference and made a part of this contract.

2) Non-discrimination: The contractor, with regard to the work performed by it during the contract, will
not discriminate on the grounds of race, color, or national origin in the selection and retention of
subcontractors, including procurements of materials and leases of equipment. The contractor will not
participate directly or indirectly in the discrimination prohibited by the Nondiscrimination Acts and
Authorities, including employment practices when the contract covers any activity, project, or program
set forth in Appendix B of 49 CFR part 21.

3) Solicitations for Subcontracts, Including Procurements of Materials and Equipment: In all solicitations,
either by competitive bidding, or negotiation made by the contractor for work tobe performed under a
subcontract, including procurements of materials, or leases of equipment, each potential subcontractor
or supplier will be notified by the contractor of the contractor’s obligations under this contract and the
Nondiscrimination Acts and Authorities on the grounds of race, color, or national origin.

4) Information and Reports: The contractor will provide all information and reports required by the
Nondiscrimination Acts and Authorities, and directives issued pursuant thereto and will permit access
to itsbooks, records, accounts, other sources of information, and its facilities as may be determined by
the sponsor or the Federal Aviation Administration to be pertinent to ascertain compliance withsuch
Nondiscrimination Acts and Authorities and instructions. Where any information required of a
contractor is inthe exclusive possession of another who fails or refuses to furnish the information, the
contractor will so certify to the sponsor or the Federal Aviation Administration, as appropriate, and will
setforth what efforts it has made to obtain the information.

5) Sanctions for Noncompliance: In the event of a contractor’s noncompliance with the Non-
discrimination provisions of this contract, the sponsor will impose such contract sanctions as it or the
Federal Aviation Administration may determine to be appropriate, including, but notlimited to:

a. Withholding payments to the contractor under the contract until the contractorcomplies; and/or
b. Cancelling, terminating, or suspending a contract, in whole or in part.

6) Incorporation of Provisions: The contractor will include the provisions of paragraphs one through six in
every subcontract, including procurements of materials and leases of equipment, unless exempt by the
Nondiscrimination Acts and Authorities, and directives issued pursuant thereto. The contractorwill
take action with respect to any subcontract or procurement as the sponsor or the Federal Aviation
Administration may direct as a means of enforcing such provisions including sanctions for
noncompliance. Provided, that if the contractor becomes involved in, or is threatened with litigation by
a subcontractor, or supplier because of such direction, the contractor may request the sponsor to enter
into any litigation to protect the interests of the sponsor. In addition, the contractor may request the
United States to enter into the litigation to protect the interests of the United States.




DocuSign Envelope ID: 1FA184C0-02D1-466F-BOD6-526F4865E704

)

ATTACHMENT 6

Title VI List of Pertinent Nondiscrimination Authorities

During the performance of this contract, the contractor, for itself, its assignees, and successors in interest
(hereinafter referred to as the “contractor”) agrees to comply with the following non- discrimination
statutes and authorities; including but not limitedto:

Title Vi of the Civil Rights Act of 1964 (42 U.S.C. § 2000d et seq., 78 stat. 252}, (prohibits discrimination
on the basis of race, color, national origin);

49 CFR part 21 (Non-discrimination in Federally-Assisted Programs of The Department of
Transportation—Effectuation of Title VI of The Civil Rights Act of 1964);

The Uniform Relocation Assistance and Real Property Acquisition Policies Act of 1970, (42 U.S.C. §
4601), (prohibits unfair treatment of persons displaced or whose property has been acquired because
of Federal or Federal-aid programs and projects);

Section 504 of the Rehabilitation Act of 1973, (29 U.S.C. § 794 et seq.), as amended, (prohibits
discrimination on the basis of disability); and 49 CFR part 27;

The Age Discrimination Act of 1975, as amended, (42 U.S.C. § 6101 et seq.), (prohibits discrimination on
the basis of age);

Airport and Airway Improvement Act of 1982, (49 USC § 471, Section 47123), as amended, (prohibits
discrimination based on race, creed, color, national origin, or sex);

The Civil Rights Restoration Act of 1987, (PL 100-209), (Broadened the scope, coverage and applicability
of Title Vi of the Civil Rights Act of 1964, The Age Discrimination Act of 1975 and Section 504 of the
Rehabilitation Act of 1973, by expanding the definition of the terms “programs or activities” to include
all of the programs or activities of the Federal-aid recipients, sub-recipients and contractors, whether
such programs or activities are Federally funded or not);

Titles I and 11l of the Americans with Disabilities Act of 1990, which prohibit discrimination on the basis
of disability in the operation of public entities, public and private transportation systems, places of
public accommodation, and certain testing entities (42 U.S.C. §§ 12131 — 12189) as implemented by
Department of Transportation regulations at 49 CFR parts 37 and 38;

The Federal Aviation Administration’s Non-discrimination statute (49 U.S.C. § 47123) (prohibits
discrimination on the basis of race, color, national origin, and sex);

Executive Order 12898, Federal Actions to Address Environmental Justice in Minority Populations and
Low-Income Populations, which ensures non-discrimination against minority populations by
discouraging programs, policies, and activities with disproportionately high and adverse human health
or environmental effects on minority and low-income populations;

Executive Order 13166, Improving Access to Services for Persons with Limited English Proficiency, and
resulting agency guidance, national origin discrimination includes discrimination because of limited
English proficiency (LEP). To ensure compliance with Title VI, you must take reasonable steps to ensure
that LEP persons have meaningful access to your programs (70 Fed. Reg. at 74087 to 74100);

Title IX of the Education Amendments of 1972, as amended, which prohibits you from discriminating
because of sex in education programs or activities (20 U.S.C. 1681 et seq).




DocuSign Envelope ID: 1FA184C0-02D1-466F-B0D6-526F4865E704
ATTACHMENT 6

DISADVANTAGED BUSINESS ENTERPRISE
Reference: 49 CFR part 26

Contract Assurance (§ 26.13) - The contractor or subcontractor shall not discriminate on the basis of race,
color, national origin, or sex in the performance of this contract. The contractor shall carryout applicable
requirements of 49 CFR Part 26 in the award and administration of DOT assisted contracts. Failure by the
contractor to carry out these requirements is a material breach of this contract, which may result in the
termination of this contract or such other remedy, as the recipient deems appropriate.

Prompt Payment (§26.29) - The prime contractor agrees to pay each subcontractor under thisprime
contract for satisfactory performance of its contract no later than thirty (30) calendar days fromthe receipt
of each payment the prime contractor receives from the Sponsor. The prime contractoragrees further to
return retainage payments to each subcontractor within thirty (30) calendar days afterthe subcontractor's
work is satisfactorily completed. Any delay or postponement of payment from the above referenced time
frame may occur only for good cause following written approval of the Sponsor. This clause applies to both
DBE and non-DBE subcontractors.

ENERGY CONSERVATION REQUIREMENTS
Reference: 2 CFR § 200, Appendix il (H)

Contractor and each subcontractor agree to comply with mandatory standards and policies relating to
energy efficiency as contained in the state energy conservation plan issued in compliance with the Energy
Policy and Conservation Act (42 U.S.C. 6201 et seq).

FEDERAL FAIR LABOR STANDARDS ACT (FEDERAL MINIMUM WAGE)
Reference: 29 USC § 201, et seq.

All contracts and subcontracts that result from this solicitation incorporate by reference the provisions of
29 CFR part 201, the Federal Fair Labor Standards Act (FLSA), with the same force and effect as if given in
full text. The FLSA sets minimum wage, overtime pay, recordkeeping, and child labor standards for full and
part time workers.

The contractor/consultant has full responsibility to monitor compliance to the referenced statute or
regulation. The contractor/consultant must address any claims or disputes that pertain to a referenced
requirement directly with the U.S. Department of Labor —Wage and Hour Division.

OCCUPATIONAL SAFETY AND HEALTH ACT OF 1970
Reference: 20 CFR part 1910

All contracts and subcontracts that result from this solicitation incorporate by reference the requirements
of 29 CFR Part 1910 with the same force and effect as if given in full text. Contractor must provide a work
environment that is free from recognized hazards that may cause death or serious physical harm to the
employee. The Contractor retains full responsibility to monitor its compliance and their subcontractor’s
compliance with the applicable requirements of the Occupational Safety and Health Act of 1970 (20 CFR
Part 1910). Contractor must address any claims or disputes that pertain to a referenced requirement
directly with the U.S. Department of Labor — Occupational Safety and Health Administration.




DocuSign Envelope ID: 1FA184C0-02D1-466F-BOD6-526F4865E704
ATTACHMENT 6

RIGHT TO INVENTIONS
Reference: 2 CFR § 200 Appendix Il (F) and 37 CFR §401

Contracts or agreements that include the performance of experimental, developmental, or research work
must provide for the rights of the Federal Government and the Owner in any resulting invention as
established by 37 CFR part 401, Rights to Inventions Made by Non-profit Organizations and Small Business
Firms under Government Grants, Contracts, and Cooperative Agreements. This contract incorporates by
reference the patent and inventions rights as specified within in the 37 CFR §401.14. Contractor must
include this requirement in all sub-tier contracts involving experimental, developmental or research work.

SEISMIC SAFETY
Reference: 49 CFR part 41

In the performance of design services, the Consultant agrees to furnish a building design and associated
construction specification that conform to a building code standard which provides a level of seismic safety
substantially equivalent to standards as established by the National Earthquake Hazards Reduction Program
(NEHRP). Local building codes that model their building code after the current version of the International
Building Code (IBC) meet the NEHRP equivalency level for seismic safety. At the conclusion of the design
services, the Consultant agrees to furnish the Owner a “certification of compliance” that attests
conformance of the building design and the construction specifications with the seismic standards of
NEHRP or an equivalent building code.

TRADE RESTRICTION CERTIFICATION
Reference: 49 USC § 50104 and 49 CFR part 30

By submission of an offer, the Offeror certifies that with respect to this solicitation and any resultant
contract, the Offeror:

a) is not owned or controlled by one or more citizens of a foreign country included in the list of
countries that discriminate against U.S. firms as published by the Office of the United States Trade
Representative (U.S.T.R.);

b) has not knowingly entered into any contract or subcontract for this project with a person thatis a
citizen or national of a foreign country included on the list of countries that discriminate against
U.S. firms as published by the U.S.T.R; and

c) has not entered into any subcontract for any product to be used on the Federal on the project that
is produced in a foreign country included on the list of countries that discriminate against U.S.
firms published by the U.S.T.R.

This certification concerns a matter within the jurisdiction of an agency of the United States of America and
the making of a false, fictitious, or fraudulent certification may render the maker subject to prosecution
under Title 18, United States Code, Section 1001.

The Offeror/Contractor must provide immediate written notice to the Owner if the Offeror/Contractor
learns that its certification or that of a subcontractor was erroneous when submitted or has become
erroneous by reason of changed circumstances. The Contractor must require subcontractors provide
immediate written notice to the Contractor if at any time it learns that its certification was erroneous by
reason of changed circumstances.




DocuSign Envelope ID: 1FA184C0-02D1-466F-B0D6-526F4865E704
ATTACHMENT 6

Unless the restrictions of this clause are waived by the Secretary of Transportation in accordance with 49
CFR 30.17, no contract shall be awarded to an Offeror or subcontractor:

a) who is owned or controlled by one or more citizens or nationals of a foreign country included on
the list of countries that discriminate against U.S. firms published by the U.S.T.R. or

b} whose subcontractors are owned or controlled by one or more citizens or nationals of a foreign
country on such U.S.T.R. list or

c) who incorporates in the public works project any product of a foreign country on such U.S.T.R. list;

Nothing contained in the foregoing shall be construed to require establishment of a system of records in
order to render, in good faith, the certification required by this provision. The knowledge and information
of a contractor is not required to exceed that which is normally possessed by a prudent person in the
ordinary course of business dealings.

The Offeror agrees that, if awarded a contract resuiting from this solicitation, it will incorporate this
provision for certification without modification in in all lower tier subcontracts. The contractor may rely on
the certification of a prospective subcontractor that it is not a firm from a foreign country included on the
list of countries that discriminate against U.S. firms as published by U.S.T.R, unless the Offeror has
knowledge that the certification is erroneous.

This certification is a material representation of fact upon which reliance was placed when making an
award. If it is later determined that the Contractor or subcontractor knowingly rendered an erroneous
certification, the Federal Aviation Administration may direct through the Owner cancellation of the contract
or subcontract for default at no cost to the Owner or the FAA.

VETERAN’S PREFERENCE
Reference: 49 USC §47112(c)

In the employment of labor (excluding executive, administrative, and supervisory positions), the contractor
and all sub-tier contractors must give preference to covered veterans as defined within Title 49 United
States Code Section 47112. Covered veterans include Vietnam-era veterans, Persian Gulf veterans,
Afghanistan-lraq war veterans, disabled veterans, and small business concerns {as defined by 15 U.S.C. 632)
owned and controlled by disabled veterans. This preference only applies when there are covered veterans
readily available and qualified to perform the work to which the employment relates.

PROVISIONS APPLICABLE TO CONTRACTS EXCEEDING $3,500

DISTRACTED DRIVING
Reference: Executive Order 13513 and DOT Order3902.10

In accordance with Executive Order 13513, "Federal Leadership on Reducing Text Messaging While Driving"
(10/1/2009) and DOT Order 3902.10 “Text Messaging While Driving” (12/30/2009), the FAA encourages
recipients of Federal grant funds to adopt and enforce safety policies that decreasecrashes by distracted
drivers, including policies to ban text messaging while driving when performingwork related to a grant or
sub-grant.

In support of this initiative, the Owner encourages the Contractor to promote policies and initiatives for its

employees and other work personnel that decrease crashes by distracted drivers, including policies that ban
text messaging while driving motor vehicles while performing work activities associated with the project. The




DocuSign Envelope ID: 1FA184C0-02D1-466F-B0D6-526F4865E704
ATTACHMENT 6

Contractor must include the substance of this clause in all sub-tier contracts exceeding $3,500 and involve
driving a motor vehicle in performance of work activities associated with the project.

PROVISIONS APPLICABLE TO CONTRACTS EXCEEDING $10,000

TERMINATION OF CONTRACT
Reference: 2 CFR § 200 Appendix Il (B)

Termination for Convenience

The Owner may, by written notice to the Consultant, terminate this Agreement for its convenience and
without cause or default on the part of Consultant. Upon receipt of the notice of termination, except as
explicitly directed by the Owner, the Contractor must immediately discontinue all services affected.

Upon termination of the Agreement, the Consultant must deliver to the Owner all data, surveys, models,
drawings, specifications, reports, maps, photographs, estimates, summaries, and other documents and
materials prepared by the Engineer under this contract, whether complete or partially complete.

Owner agrees to make just and equitable compensation to the Consultant for satisfactory work completed
up through the date the Consultant receives the termination notice. Compensation will not include
anticipated profit on non-performed services.

Owner further agrees to hold Consultant harmless for errors or omissions in documents that are
incomplete as a result of the termination action under this clause.

Termination by Default
Either party may terminate this Agreement for cause if the other party fails to fulfill its obligations that are

essential to the completion of the work per the terms and conditions of the Agreement. The party initiating
the termination action must allow the breaching party an opportunity to dispute or cure the breach.

The terminating party must provide the breaching party [7] days advance written notice of its intent to
terminate the Agreement. The notice must specify the nature and extent of the breach, the conditions
necessary to cure the breach, and the effective date of the termination action. The rights and remedies in
this clause are in addition to any other rights and remedies provided by law or under this agreement.

a) Termination by Owner: The Owner may terminate this Agreement in whole or in part, for the failure
of the Consultant to:

1) Perform the services within the time specified in this contract or by Owner approved extension;
2) Make adequate progress so as to endanger satisfactory performance of the Project;
3) Fulfill the obligations of the Agreement that are essential to the completion of the Project.

Upon receipt of the notice of termination, the Consultant must immediately discontinue all services
affected unless the notice directs otherwise. Upon termination of the Agreement, the Consultant must
deliver to the Owner all data, surveys, models, drawings, specifications, reports, maps, photographs,
estimates, summaries, and other documents and materials prepared by the Engineer under this contract,
whether complete or partially complete.

Owner agrees to make just and equitable compensation to the Consultant for satisfactory work completed
up through the date the Consultant receives the termination notice. Compensation will not include
anticipated profit on non-performed services.

Owner further agrees to hold Consultant harmless for errors or omissions in documents that are




DocusSign Envelope ID: 1FA184C0-02D1-466F-BOD6-526F4865E704
ATTACHMENT 6

incomplete as a result of the termination action under this clause.

If, after finalization of the termination action, the Owner determines the Consultant was not in default of
the Agreement, the rights and obligations of the parties shall be the same as if the Owner issued the
termination for the convenience of the Owner.

b) Termination by Consultant: The Consultant may terminate this Agreement in whole or in part, if the
Owner:

1) Defaults on its obligations under this Agreement;
2) Fails to make payment to the Consultant in accordance with the terms of this Agreement;

3) Suspends the Project for more than [180] days due to reasons beyond the control of the
Consultant.

Upon receipt of a notice of termination from the Consultant, Owner agrees to cooperate with Consultant
for the purpose of terminating the agreement or portion thereof, by mutual consent. If Owner and
Consultant cannot reach mutual agreement on the termination settlement, the Consultant may, without
prejudice to any rights and remedies it may have, proceed with terminating all or parts of this Agreement
based upon the Owner’s breach of the contract.

In the event of termination due to Owner breach, the Engineer is entitled to invoice Owner and to receive
full payment for all services performed or furnished in accordance with this Agreement and all justified
reimbursable expenses incurred by the Consultant through the effective date of termination action. Owner
agrees to hold Consultant harmless for errors or omissions in documents that are incomplete as a result of
the termination action under this clause.

PROVISIONS APPLICABLE TO CONTRACTS EXCEEDING $25,000

DEBARMENT AND SUSPENSION
Reference: 2 CFR part 180 (Subpart C), 2 CFR part 1200, and DOT Order 4200.5

By submitting a bid/proposal under this solicitation, the bidder or offeror certifies that at the time the
bidder or offeror submits its proposal that neither it nor its principals are presently debarred or suspended
by any Federal department or agency from participation in this transaction.

The successful bidder, by administering each lower tier subcontract that exceeds $25,000 as a “covered
transaction”, must verify each lower tier participant of a “covered transaction” under the project is not
presently debarred or otherwise disqualified from participation in this federally assisted project. The
successful bidder will accomplish this by:

1) Checking the System for Award Management at website: https://www.sam.gov.

2) Collecting a certification statement similar to the Certificate Regarding Debarment and Suspension
(Bidder or Offeror), above.

3} Inserting a clause or condition in the covered transaction with the lower tier contract

If the FAA later determines that a lower tier participant failed to tell a higher tier that it was excludedor
disqualified at the time it entered the covered transaction, the FAA may pursue any availableremedy,
including suspension and debarment.




DocuSign Envelope ID: 1FA184C0-02D1-466F-B0D6-526F4865E704
ATTACHMENT 6

PROVISIONS APPLICABLE TO CONTRACTS EXCEEDING $100,000

CONTRACT WORKHOURS AND SAFETY STANDARDS ACT REQUIREMENTS
Reference: 2 CFR § 200 Appendix Il (E)

1) Overtime Requirements.

No contractor or subcontractor contracting for any part of the contract work which may require or involve
the employment of laborers or mechanics shall require or permit any such laborer ormechanic, including
watchmen and guards, in any workweek in which he or she is employed on such work to work in excess of
forty hours in such workweek unless such laborer or mechanic receives compensation ata rate not less than
one and one-half times the basic rate of pay for all hours worked in excess offorty hours in such workweek.

2) Violation; Liability for Unpaid Wages; Liguidated Damages.

In the event of any violation of the clause set forth in paragraph (1) above, the contractor andany
subcontractor responsible therefor shall be liable for the unpaid wages. In addition, such contractor and
subcontractor shall be liable to the United States (in the case of work done under contract forthe District of
Columbia or a territory, to such District or to such territory), for liquidated damages. Such liquidated
damages shall be computed with respect to each individual laborer or mechanic, including watchmen and
guards, employed in violation of the clause set forth in paragraph 1 above, in the sum of $10 for each
calendar day on which such individual was required or permitted to work in excess ofthe standard
workweek of forty hours without payment of the overtime wages required by the clause set forth in
paragraph 1 above.

3) Withholding for Unpaid Wages and Liquidated Damages.

The Federal Aviation Administration or the Sponsor shall upon its own action or upon written request of an
authorized representative of the Department of Labor withhold or cause to be withheld, fromany monies
payable on account of work performed by the contractor or subcontractor under any such contract or any
other Federal contract with the same prime contractor, or any other Federally-assisted contract subject to
the Contract Work Hours and Safety Standards Act, which is held by the same prime contractor, such sums
as may be determined to be necessary to satisfy any liabilities of such contractor or subcontractor for
unpaid wages and liquidated damages as provided in the clause set forthin paragraph 2 above.

4) Subcontractors.

The contractor or subcontractor shall insert in any subcontracts the clauses set forth in paragraphs1
through 4 and also a clause requiring the subcontractor to include these clauses in any lowertier
subcontracts. The prime contractor shall be responsible for compliance by any subcontractor orlower tier
subcontractor with the clauses set forth in paragraphs 1 through 4 of thissection.

LOBBYING AND INFLUENCING FEDERAL EMPLOYEES

Reference: 31 U.S.C. § 1352 — Byrd Anti-Lobbying Amendment; 2 CFR part 200, Appendix Il (J); and 49 CFR
part 20, Appendix A

The bidder or offeror certifies by signing and submitting this bid or proposal, to the best of his orher
knowledge and belief, that:

1) No Federal appropriated funds have been paid or will be paid, by or on behalf of the Bidder or
Offeror, to any person for influencing or attempting to influence an officer or employee of an agency,
a Member of Congress, an officer or employee of Congress, or an employee of a Member of Congress




DocuSign Envelope ID: 1FA184C0-02D1-466F-B0D6-526F4865E704
ATTACHMENT 6

in connection with the awarding of any Federal contract, the making of any Federal grant, the making
of any Federal loan, the entering into of any cooperative agreement, and the extension, continuation,
renewal, amendment, or modification of any Federal contract, grant, loan, or cooperative agreement.

2) If any funds other than Federal appropriated funds have been paid or will be paid to any person for
influencing or attempting to influence an officer or employee of any agency, a Member of Congress,
an officer or employee of Congress, or an employee of a Member of Congress in connection with this
Federal contract, grant, loan, or cooperative agreement, the undersigned shall complete and submit
Standard Form-LLL, “Disclosure Form to Report Lobbying,” in accordance with its instructions.

3) The undersigned shall require that the language of this certification be included in the award
documents for all sub-awards at all tiers (including subcontracts, sub-grants, and contracts under
grants, loans, and cooperative agreements) and that all sub-recipients shall certify and disclose
accordingly.

This certification is a material representation of fact upon which reliance was placed whenthis transaction
was made or entered into. Submission of this certification is a prerequisite for makingor entering into this
transaction imposed by Section 1352, Title 31, U.S. Code. Any person who fails to file the required
certification shall be subject to a civil penalty of not less than $10,000 and not more than $100,000 for each

such failure.

PROVISIONS APPLICABLE TO CONTRACTS EXCEEDING $150,000

BREACH OF CONTRACT TERMS

Reference: 2 CFR § 200 Appendix Il (A)
Any violation or breach of terms of this contract on the part of the contractor or its subcontractors may

result in the suspension or termination of this contract or such other action that may be necessaryto
enforce the rights of the parties of this agreement.

The duties and obligations imposed by the Contract Documents and the rights and remedies available
thereunder are in addition to, and not a limitation of, any duties, obligations, rights and remedies otherwise
imposed or available by law.

CLEAN AIR AND WATER POLLUTION CONTROL
Reference: 2 CFR § 200 Appendix|l {G)

Contractor agrees to comply with all applicable standards, orders, and regulations issued pursuant to the
Clean Air Act (42 U.S.C. § 740-7671q) and the Federal Water Pollution Control Act as amended (33 U.S.C. §
1251-1387). The Contractor agrees to report any violation to the Owner immediately upon discovery. The
Owner assumes responsibility for notifying the Environmental Protection Agency (EPA) and the Federal
Aviation Administration.

Contractor must include this requirement in all subcontracts that exceeds $150,000.




"spoliad uononusuod ybiy Buunp moj Yseo 0} Seoue|eq YSED JNo Pasn aAeY pue Ajlewiui AISA JIpaid 1o aulj 8U) pasn sAeY ap) ‘sesuadxe }saJejul paonpai 0} anp }obpnqg mojaq 3+9g S! sasuadxa Buiesado UON ,
"spuny antasa sabie| Bululejurew Aq enusnal ysaisiul pasealou oujel) Jobuassed 0} psje|el SO4d Paseaioul 0} anp S yoiym 36z Aq dn sI enuanal Bunesado uoy ,

"Jobpnq Jano Yoy Alesu ale sesuadxg sapeiBdn [eoujos)e Buines ABisus swos o} anp Ajsow ‘Yzz Auesu Aq 126png Jano osje s salddng *JYS ey} uo suiedal Joos souBINSUI

0} anp 396pnq Jano 3.1 | si sebieyd pue seojnieg “saljddns pue sasusdxs souBuSUEW PUE Sileda) PISEaIoUl PUE S}AUSq pue uopesuadwoo [suuosiad psonpas woly SaWod }3Bpng woly soueleA jsebie| s,asuadxg ,

"JoBpng 1an0 g6 ALeaU I enuansy SO *® SUOISSEIUOD Jojesado pue Og4 Joyjo pue [ejuail Jeo ‘Bupyied se yons ‘senuanal UOISS80U09 WOl 3Wo9d Jobpng wolj saoueleA }sable| S,anusnay
"W} 0} SWI} W0} SINd20 SadI0AUL Jo Jdiedal ul sAejsp se sjuswisnipe yum Apybijs abueyo o} pajoadxa ale podal Siy} 4o S)ynsal oyl ,
0¥} 490 JO SdoUBLIEA BAIISOd B Je SI YA Syl swl) SIy) J "pajsnipe Ajjeuoseas si yolym e6png psjedo|ie ue uo paseq sl Hodai syl ,

00°992°228'6$ (L0°c98'85¥$)  £5°0EVLLV'6S  0€°196°GZSV$ £2°860°290'$ (0g°zeev0T'S$) awoau| 3oN
(z6'806°L¥9%68) 6V9CLP0Z LS 98 LEL LIS (89 LEV IS LY) (92°9z0%c91°2$) uopezijowy @ uoijeioaidad
80°005°6LZVLS$ (90'611°208°2$) 6L°evL'98eTs  90°SZ9b99°0L$ 00°905°198°C$ 18'29¢'525$ sjuel9/syoafold
Y8'PLL'S6Z LS 0s'6LLOvLS  (22vipTs) £6°29.°260°L$ £Y°.88°282°1$ 69'1€8°GEZ LS uoneziyowy = uonerdaidaq ‘sasuadxg 30afold Jo SAISN[OXT BWOIU] JON

Le'vol'ees €0°ZY6'LLS €719 791$ gL LSYLYLS awoau| Jaylo 38N

9l'9

s S o T I L 77 S (7 < S~ ¢ O T
y8'eve Lovs (c0'0s2°9s$)  (vL°zeo9L$) 16°208°60€$ CUwetsslisves 80°06Lp9zs asuadx3 Bunelsdo-uoN
asuadx3 Joyjo
00'00L'88YS | L€698'6ZS LbTLOS  00'0SY'E8ES  LEBLEEWS  0zupEoys auodu] Joylo - [EjoL
00°00188¥$ 1£7698°62$ L1°2L0°LS 00°05v°'€8¢$ LE°6LECLYS 02°Lv2'90¥$ , anuaAdy bupgesado-uoN
auwoauj L_yj0
mmm:wnxm pue swoauj 13ylo
89 8LV VLTS 0L005'es$ | (e5°8¥5°s29) 06'528'710°L$ 00°92£°890°1$ L B0 LS awodu| AieuipiQ 39N
SCBSOLLLYS | Lo9veBeES | LOBEOWEVS  €8°2igTo0'es TTREUELZ0LES T egiegyUgsteg asusdthd - 8101
80°009°0Vv$ ' §9've2'2$ €1°218'¢s$  vvoslioees CUe0Ler'sses T Teeelgtpogs T saiddng
62°595°065°L$ 09'599°2L1LS 6£°€92°19% S8°€59V61°L$ SZ6LETLE LS 98'550°1L52°1$ sabieyy pue sadiniag
90°e¥£‘850°C$ (bL'25¢°L6%) 12°282°LL$ Le°9LL°01S LS 99'85¢°cL¥ LS S$°920°962°L$ sjjauag g uojesuadwo [auuosiad
96'6V5°LZ$ (eLLL9'C8) 82'5¢€2$ 16°50L0Z$ ¥2°820°8L$ 96°269'G1$ sasuadx3g snoaue|[23siy
asuadxgy
LO'LLY'LEESS LUYOE'eeS 8YEYL'60LS  €5°860°L20%S YZ'E9Y0L1 7S 9L'81E"L90°P$ S Woid ssolg
CLLVIEESS | LIYOEeS  8y'evL'60LS | €G'860°LL0$ U yEeev'oLiys TSI IE IS0 e OUIOOUI-[EJOL
00°L0S‘e¥e LS (9t'62Le$) €9°0L0°091L$ 05°212'526% © U v0'8L¥ LERS WLOV'LLLS 9NUdASY |edINBUOISY dulllY Jabusssed
L16'9L9°L1LS°L$ 62°L56°29% (v0r9cL'ch$) €L°29L°0pL LS 20°021c02‘1$ 90°952°9%2‘L$ oNuaAdy [edljneuolay Jobuassed-uoN
01'662°045°C$ 88'9YL'veS (L1's82'28) 0€°8LLL00°C$ 81'598'520°C$ 62°059°¢v0°2$ 9NUBASY |edljneuoiay-uoN
awodu|
ww:oaxm\mEou:_ ?_N::P_O
(8Lozisnlpy-g8L0z  396png Jeap (8102 des (8102 das - 8102 (£10z dog MOy [eloueuld
uer) 3obpng |ej0) w014 adueliep 101 d WoJy douele + gL0z Uer) Junowy 3a6png uer) [enjoy JBdA JuaLINg - LL0Z uer) |enjoy Jeaj Jold
pajipneun

810z das 0} 810z uer wou
|enjoy sA 3oBpng joxoed pleog yyQ
fuoyny Jodiay yining

ER =



Duluth Airport Authority
Balance Sheet
End of Sep 2018

Financial Row Amount
ASSETS
Current Assets
Bank
Petty Cash $33.89
Pooled Cash - City Balance $1,297,128.29
Total Bank $1,297,162.18

Accounts Receivable
Accounts Receivable - Restricted PFC
Accounts Receivable Billed

$49,132.31
$676,927.99

Total Accounts Receivable
Other Current Asset

$726,060.30
$99,923.51

Total Current Assets

Fixed Assets
Accumulated Depreciation
Capital Assets
Work in Progress

$2,123,145.99

($100,852,356.88)

$220,376,476.41

$8,175,882.31

Total Fixed Assets

Other Assets
Accumulated Amortization
Airport Planning Projects - Contributed
Airport Planning Projects - Invested
Deferred Outflows
Lease Buyout Costs

$127,700,001.84

($1,299,894.66)
$2,223,950.52
$400,003.05
$571,852.00
$30,327.35

Total Other Assets

$1,926,238.26

Total ASSETS
LIABILITIES & EQUITY
Current Liabilities
Accounts Payable

$131,749,386.09

Accounts Payable $102,832.03
Contracts Payable $829,273.25
Total Accounts Payable $932,105.28
Credit Card $5,320.50
Other Current Liability
Accrued Interest 199,771.19
Accrued Sales Taxes Payabie - All $73.57
Accrued Vacation $111,981.58
Deferred Inflows $433,590.00
Loans Payable - DEDA MIF $26,666.64
Loans Payable to City of Duluth $10,190,000.00
Revenue Note Payable - FBO Acquisition $34,389.22
Unearned Revenue - Current $500.00
Unearned Revenue - Non Current $408,457.58

Total Other Current Liability
Total Current Liabilities
Long Term Liabilities

LT Loans Payable - DEDA MIF

LT Revenue Note Payable FBO Acquisition
Net Other Postemployment Benefits Liability

Net Pension Liability

11,405,429.78
12,342,855.56

$35,665.92
$35,910.92
$1,439,444.19
$1,295,939.00

Total Long Term Liabilities
Equity
Contributed Equity
Retained Earnings
Net Income

$2,806,850.03

$16,621,668.70
$95,910,913.57
4,067,098.23

Total Equity

116,599,680.50

Total LIABILITIES & EQUITY

131,749,386.09




Duluth Airport Authority
Income Statement

From Jan 2018 to Sep 2018

Financial Row Amount
Ordinary Income/Expense
Income
Non-Aeronautical Revenue
Advertising Income $10,650.00
Concession Revenue
ATM $535.00
Car Rental Concession $414,060.46
Food & Beverage Concession $56,815.25
Parking $827,484.72
Services/Other $450.00
TNC Per Trip Fee $7,940.00
Vending ) $4,999.47
Total - Concession Revenue $1,312,284.90
Customer Facility Charges $230,028.00
Miscellaneous Revenues 108,517.76
Parking $114,265.75
Permits $8,304.43
Plowing Services $6,750.00
Reimbursed Expenses 32,367.44
Rent $109,683.18
Sponsorship Income $50,000.00
State Aid $53,013.72
Total - Non-Aeronautical Revenue 2,035,865.18
Non-Passenger Aeronautical Revenue
Aviation Gas $75,405.73
Concession Revenue $115,671.28
Event Income $34,016.44
Landing Fees $30,469.74
Ramp Fees $13,947.12
Rent 855,824.86
Security Reimbursement $72,754.85
Tie Downs _$5,030.00
Total - Non-Passenger Aeronautical Revenue 1,203,120.02
Passenger Airline Aeronautical Revenue )
Landing Fees $249,211.07
Terminal Office/Space Rental n $682,266.97
Total - Passenger Airline Aeronautical Revenue $931,478.04
Total - Income 4,170,463.24
Gross Profit 4,170,463.24
Expense
Amortization Expense
Holmgren Lease $27,295.20
Total - Amortization Expense $27,295.20
Miscellaneous Expenses
Miscellaneous Expenses $677.10
Licenses & Taxes $2,571.17
Memberships, Dues & Subscriptions $2,364.16
Transaction Fees $12,415.81
Total - Miscellaneous Expenses 18,028.24
Personnel Compensation & Benefits
Benefit Administration Fees )  446.70
Employer Contributions for Retirement ~ $125,226.56
Employer Paid Insurance $229,792.62
Retiree Benefits $47,337.96
Unemployment Compensation $278.52
$972,038.38

Wages & Salaries




Financial Row

Amount

Worker's Compensation $38,237.92
Total - Personnel Compensation & Benefits 1,413,358.66
Services and Charges o

Advertising $605.49

Badging $6,200.00

Central Services Fee $33,899.94

Communications & Technology $78,714.89

Employee Development Services $26,117.88

Employee Physicals $230.00

Finance Charge ~$8.46

Insurance $46,999.26

Marketing 115,562.39

Professional Services $252,051.39

Rentals $8,465.09

Repairs and Maintenance - Contractual/Services 390,871.30

Sponsorship Expenses ~$615.00

Transportation $3,374.68

Utility Services

Electric $233,681.25
Fuel Cil $1,673.75
Natural Gas $44,370.50
Propane $1,020.89
Refuse Disposal $26,172.79
Storm Water $31,974.13
Water ] $9,910.17

Total - Utility Services $348,603.48
Total - Services and Charges 1,312,319.25
Supplies o

Merchandise for Resale $61,643.49

Office Supplies $18,309.32

Operating Supplies $90,442.83

Repairs & Maintenance Supplies 188,035.45
Total - Supplies 358,431.09

Total - Expense 3,129,432.44
Net Ordinary Income 1,041,030.80
Other Income and Expenses

Other Income

Capital Contributions ) )
$139,390.84

Contributed Capital
Grants

Total - Capital Contributionsw o
Non-Operating Revenue

$2,722,115.16

$2,861,506.00

Interest Income $36,335.00
Passenger Facility Charges $376,984.37
Total - Non-Operating Revenue $413,319.37
Total - Other Income $3,274,825.37
Other Expense
Non-Operating Expense
Interest Expense
City - Hangar 103 Loan $61,753.14
City - Parking Structure Loan $79,084.71
City - Terminal Loan $98,910.99
Line of Credit $3,250.00
NCA - Holmgren Loan $5,769.10
Total - Interest Expense $248,757.94
Total - Non-Operating Expense $248,757.94
Total - Other Expense $248,757.94
Net Other Income $3,026,067.43
4,067,098.23

Net Income



e/l

=90UBYMR | =pEO[RIRY | £=10/ |u isuuniuodas/Buipodes/dde/woo synsiaur L eu walsAs//:sdpy

ZS0L18 0008 00°0% 00°0$ 290LL8 00°0$ . 81.02/9/Z1 8zey 810Z/9/11 82j0AU| *1Y ‘Bregbey
00°087% 00°S1$ 00°052% 00°G4L$ 000% 000$ 0ss9
00'90€$  00°€SL$ 00°0$ 00°0$ 00°€S1L$ 00°0$ PIel99) ‘ogswilg
0008l  000$ 00°0$ 00°0$ 00081$ 00°0$ 62 8L0Z/VL/IL BLi¥ 8L02/S1L/0L 3010AU| sueAd YLD
00°€St$  00°0$ 00°0$ 00'0$ 00°€G1$ 00°0$ 82 8L0ZSH/IL YoLY 8102/91/01 8910AU| 3l[oYall ‘SIS
00'80€$  0062L$ 00°0$ 00°0% 0008L$ 00°0$ slog ueyajlon
uojesIuwpY
(¥0'1$) (y0'L$) 00°0% 00°0$ 00°0$ 00°0$ 98l 8LOZ/LLS B6£0E 8L02/11/8 Jswhey S30INIDG [2ISUSD
00°0L°4$  00°S$ 00°S7€$ 00°09€°L$ 00°0% 00'0$ uopelodio) ssaidxg [esspad
uonesIuupy
00°9Z0°cL$ 000 00°0$ 00°0% 00'920'€}$ 00°0$ L 8102/9/2Z1 sozy 8L02Z/9/LL 2010AU| UolleIAY |esapa4
Auedwon
¥9°028'91$ 009 00'829'9L$  00°0$ y9'981$ 00°0$ Buises asudigug
vOLPES 000 00°0$ Z90L1$ TS0LL$ 00°0$ piaeq ‘peisbug
0072018 00°0% 00°0$ 00°0$ 00'20L$ 00°0$ 8z 8L0Z/SL/LL goLy 810Z/94/0} 300U [PBYOII SpJemps
Auoyginy
00%0.'5€$  00°0$ 00°0% 00%0.'68$  00°0% 00°0$ sy 8LOZ/LEOL LL0¥ 810Z/1/0L 39/0AU| JUSWAO[RASQ DILIOUCOT YNNG
L6228 00°0$ 00°0$ 00°0$ 1£'622$ 00°0$ L 8102/9/21 €0z 81.02/9/LL 3010AU] SialuED SUAIQ
00'S0¥'L$  00°0% 00'0$ 00°50¥'1$ 00°0% 00°0$ Ze  8L0Z/LL/LL YELY 8102/21/0L 9010AU| $90JAI9S [BGOID Bljad
LLEL'ELS 0008 00°0$ (g6°218'e$)  60°6Y0°LLS 00°0$ saullIy B3[aQ
00Z0l$  00°0$ 00°0$ 00°0$ 0020L$ 00°0$ 8z 8L02/5H1L 9Ly 810Z/9L/04 39j0AU| ueyieN ‘uuewlieq
LoLyP$  00°0$ 00°0$ 00°0$ 19 LPY$ 00°0$ 82 8L0ZWLILL 9Ly 8L0Z/SL/0L 8210AU| qoy Jeo
09'95$ 00°0$ 00'0$ 0£'82$ 0€'82$ 00°0$ sufpndwog
05'962¢  6T'SYLS$ 00'0$ 00°0$ 12169 00°0% lodjed 11y IIAID
8z'Z9L's$  00°0% 00°0$ 711851 yL185'1$ 00°0$ usning jo Ao
vZ'68Y'22$ 00°0$ 00'0$ 00°0$ vZ'68Y'22$ 00°0$ uoneiodio ubisaq snuiid
95°e6L$  00°0$ 00°0$ 00°0$ 95°¢61$ 00°0$ )i 8102/9/2} yezy 8L0Z/9/L 8010AU] ueas ‘[lIyoInyQ
002018 00°0$ 00°0$ 00°0% 00°Z0L$ 00°0$ 82  8L0Z/SLILL 65L¥ 810Z/91/0L 3010AY| I pleuoy ‘esed
16°0€Z'L$ 0008 00°0$ 000$ 1S0€2'L$ 000$ L 810Z/9/2L 8L 810Z/9/LL 3010AU| 12D v Jusy 1eBpng
766228  00°0% 00°0$ 00°0$ 76'622$ 00°0$ L 810Z/9/21 ey 81L0Z/9/LL 8010AU| SawWer ‘umoig
oed
0000528 00°0$ 00°0$ 00°0$ 00°052$ 00°0$ 1 8L02/9/2) 8Ly 810Z/9/1L 8210AU] YNNG YEQ SIUSWISIAU M)d
PrIEPS  00°0% 00°0$ 00°0$ v Lev$ 00°0$ ¥ 81.02/6/21 8yZy 8102/6/1} 3010AU] g Awejjeg
00°€SL$  00°0$ 00°0$ 00°0$ 00°€S1$ 00°0$ 82 8L0Z/SLLL 8L 8L0Z/9L/0L 3010AU| K ‘sequeg
00Z6L's$  00°0% 00°0$ 00°0$ 00'Z61'6$ 00°0$ €L 8L0Z/0e/LL zvey 810Z/LE/0L 800U 2D v Jusy siny
005528  00°0% 00°0$ 00°552$ 00°0% 00°0$ Ze  SLOZILLL 0Ly 8L0Z/ZL/0L 8010AU] SIMIOS HEIONY YYY
Mwmwmm quﬂ_mm_ mwmﬂ.mm souejeg uadQ aouejeg uadg qumo_mm
(08<) " (06) 810218116 (09) 8102/c1/0) (0€) 8L0Z/ZL/LL A0V mmﬂm zo;owwm__/_éwu zo_ko<mm_&m zo_5<mmmmwr
TVLOL 8LOZ/SL8 TG e  SeL0zps - elozmiioL ANMENO H3INOLSND
a40439

( owsy ypas QuaswAhed ‘asioau] o) jenba) adA] uonjoesuel) :si9)ji
810T ‘Sl J9qWAAON jo sy
Hoday Bulby ¥/v yining

A Muouiny poduy yining

Hodey Buiby ¥/v yining

8L0c/eL/LL



€/ =30UBYMR | =PBO[8IRY | £=40/ U ieuuniuodes/Buiiode./dde/wos synsiaur | eu walsAs//:sdiy

£9'¢75% 00°0% 00°0% 00°0% £9°828$ 00°0$ *ONI ‘SIND
76'622$ 00°0% 00°0% 00°0% 26'622$ 00'0% L 8102/9/Z1 912y 8102/9/L1 80j0AU] Hagoy ‘sufed
P65V 00°0% 00°0% 26'622$ 26'622$ 00°0$ aoueT ‘aypied
95°¢61$ 00°0% 00°0% 00°0% 95°¢61$ 00'0% L 81.02/9/21 9eZy 8102/9/L1 S0[0AU| uyor Jawied
95'e6l$  00°0% 00°0% 00°0% 95°¢61$ 00°0% . 81.02/9/21 lordd 8102/9/L1 S0JOAU| up maygelN oedo
woo'plg
(1L6°'80L'7$) (69'09¢'28)  000$ (zosvLL$) 00°0% 00°0$ -0(1/S133U0NINY [[2OHSGO
€L'2L0'6$  00°0$ 00°0% 00°0% £L°2710'6$ 00°0$ 2711 °49 siismieo
05°181$ 00°0% 00°0% 00°0% 05'181$ 00°0% L 810Z/9/ZL Lozy 8102/9/1) S0[OAU]  "OU ‘SIOJONHSUOD PUBJYLON
8L'y9e'vLe (81°G/2%) AR AAS 00°0$ v 168718 00°0% obJeg aty ujejunopy
€5°Y29's$  00°0% 00°0% 00°0$ £9'429'G$ 00'0% yning 4y odeuopy
€90V 00°0% 00'0% 00°0% Y 90v$ 00°0% L 8102/9/21L 8617 810Z/9/LL 80J0AU] Jamod ejosauulpy
pienc feuoneN
£27102°€L$  00'0$ 00'0% 00'1.69°c$ £€°010°2$ 00°008°L$ 11y ejosauul - 3oL
00°00s'.$  00°0% 00'0% 00°0% 00°0% 00°005'2$ © 810Z/S1iT) 8szy 81L0Z/ELILL 210U
€e°062°1$  00°0% 00'0% 00°0% £2°082°14 00°0% i 81.02/9/2) L6LY 810Z/9/11 20JOAU|
00°08.$ 00°0% 00°0% 00°0% 00°08.$ 00°0% 4 8102/L/Z) BLLY 8L0Z/L/LL do10AU|
00°169'€$  00°0% 00°0% 00°169'c$ 00°0% 00°0% € 8L0Z/1E/0L 8207 8102/1/01 2010AU|
pieno
|euocijeN 11y ejosauulpy
UHON 8 Jo ues|D [e3sAID
00°61E$ 00°0$ 00'0% 00'51€$ 00°0% 00°0% [43 8L0Z/LL/LL 14%4 8102/Z1/0) B0I0AU] vda e d1g uspsiepn
(oo'0ie$)  00°0% 00°0% (00'018%) 00°0% 00°0% ouLte Ylep
v0'L¥ES 00°0% 00°0%$ 2570418 2S'0LLS 00°0% yodsueil YBT3 IN
00'8:2% 00°0% 00°0% 00°0$ 00'8/2$ 00°0% L 810Z/0€/11 65Ty 81.02/L€/01 2010AU| "ou] ‘YA
£1'98% 00°0% 00°0$ 00°0% £1'88$ 00°0$ 4 81.02/6/21 LTy 8102/6/11 8010AU| Hory N
09°'GLP$ 00°0% 00'0$ 00°0% 09'SLY$ 00°0$ Aisweald ano
Le'vegly  00°0% 00°0% 00'595$ L£'692°L$ 00°0$ s19)doojjoH Jopadng axer
19°612'€€$  00°0% 00°0% 00°0% 19°G11ee8 00°0% L 8102/9/Z1 102y 810Z/9/LL 8310AU| aB9y|09 Jouadng axeT
86'G0.$ 00°0$ 00°0% 00°0% 96'G0.$ 00°0% L 81.02/9/2) gLzy 8102/9/L) 900AU]  dT7 ‘Uojeiny Joliedng oxeT
LY'T66$ 00°0%$ 00°0% 00°'0$ Ly'266$ 00°0% Buraasiybil A3uno axe
5018 00°0% 00°0$ 00°0% Z5°0L1% 00°0% L 8102/9/21 rad 81L0Z/9/11 80j0AU| ined ‘uolsuyor
v 00v$ 00°0% 00°0% 00°0$ 7V 00vs$ 00°0$ L 8102/9/Z} sLTy 810Z/9/L1 80j0AU] pJeyory ‘uosuyop
00°0£9$ 00°0.5$ 00°0% 00°0% 00°09% 00°0$ uyor pisuyjsr
26'622$ 00°0% 00°0% 00°0% 26'622% 00°0% L 8102/9/Z1 2Ty 8102/9/L1 82[0AU| Buponi] 18104 yer
60°8LY'GPS vELGELYS  00°0% 00°0% SL'99¥'c$ 00°0% *ou| ‘suonnjos cipAH
€1'989'.$  00°0$ 00°0$ 00°9£0'9% £1°009'L$ 00°0$ }SOM puBIaAQ-ZH3H
02°008'c$ 29'896°L$ 95°019% 96°019% 96°019$ 00°0% sofjnespAy umojueuLIay
00°61$ 00°6L$ 00'0% 00°0% 00°0$ 00°0$ oLl 8102/52/8 0.8 8102/92/.L 8010AU| uuy yoequiioH
25°041$ 00°0% 00°0$ 00°0% 26°041$ 00°0% L 81.02/9/2) vzzy 810Z/9/1} 8010AU] ueq ‘piayren
LO'0YS$ 00'0$ 18'$ 0L'29T$ 017,928 00°0% uyor jley
wwumo.mm mwmm_mm Nwm_w«m souejeg usdo  esuzjeg usdg wwnwmm
(06<) " (06) 8L0z/¢1/6 (09) 8L0Z/EL/0L (0) 8102241 sov i NOLLOVSNAAL zo;o,qwm&m NOLLOVSNVAIL
IVLOL 8L0Z/S1/8 ANFHAND

i ) ) YAWOLSND
PISL®  -Bl0zike  -8LOZWLE - 8LOZPLIOL

Hodey Buiby /v yining 3L0c/EL/LL



€/e =90UBUMR | =PBO[8IRY | £=40/ |u isuuniuodas/Buiodal/dde/uos synsiau L eu wa)sAs)/:sduy

56'919'1928 P0'68G'ZYS  LTLIE0ZS  8EL6L'SYS  TLOTOEYLS  00°005'L$ fejoL
28048 0008 0008 00'08 Zg0Ls 0008 L 8L0e9 ~szey sl0ze eolau - uoysuem
006l8 00518 00'08 00°0$ 00'08 0008 LT 8L02/9LS 62€e 8LOZI9L Y 200nU| IoeLRIN ‘YBIngson
000EL$  00°0$ 00'03 00°0€}$ 0008 0008 T BLOZ/LLLL ovLy 8102/21/0} sojonu| 2019 [e31ed PRy
00'SHS 0008 00'0$ 00'08 00'sLL$ 0008 0z 8LOTEL/ 9LLy 8102/v2/0} 2010nu| seuyy pajun
uoyexsIuIWPY
91'899'8¢  00'08 00'08 00°09¥$ 91'802'88 000 faunasg uopepiodsuesy
Z50LLS 0008 00'08 00'08 250L18 0008 £ 81L02/9/Z} Lszy 810Z/9/LL s0(0AU] Hues4 ‘usunyey
9,689  00'0$ 26'6223 26'622$ z6'6228 00'08 ueq mophs
250U 0008 00'08 00°08 250418 0008 £ 8102/9/2} ezey 8102/9/41 sojonul M ‘suenelg
(ve'z8z'e8) 0008 00'08 00'08 (rez8T'88) 0008 S 8102/8/}1 ev.e 81L02/8/11 JuswAed SaUIIY JSeMAS
26'6228  00°0$ 00'08 00°0$ 26'622$ 0008 £ 8102/9/2} \eey 8102/9/1L 20j0nu| Auer ‘|aBois
0000s$  00'0$ 00'08 00'052$ 00'052$ 00°08 sisjamar Ajnoag
00'90€$  00°ESLS 0008 00'08 00'€5}$ 00'0$ uor woxnses
2L62078 0008 00'0 00'08 262028 0008 L 81021971 vizy 810Z/9/1L sa(onu] H3SY
2904 0008 00°0$ 00'08 250448 000§ L 810219/} eeey 8102/9/}} salonu| Koy ‘sqeayy
25018 0008 00'08 0008 250448 0008 2 810219/} Leey 8102/9/}) sajonu| piAEQ ‘UnquieY
(05°298%) 0008 00°0$ 00'08 (05'295$) 0008 12 8LOZ/EZIOL 069¢ 8102/52/01 juswAed O] Usisey
Mwuwmm Nwmwu_mm mwmwwm aouejeg uadg souejeg uado wwmwmm
(06<)  (06) 8L02/E1/6 (09) 9102/EL/01 (0F) 810ZIZLIL Y 0T NOLOVSNVAL NOLLOVSNWML  NOLLOVSNYAL
THLOL  LOZIHE L e e ey NZ¥NND ¥INOLSND
o438

Hoday Buiby ¥y yining 8LOT/SLILL



20£'8€T geo6Ll |osL'czl [szsozL |6926LL | L8z'szl | 89s'gel |eJoL
- - €9G°/ Lyy'8 - Gov'L 862’8 23d
- = 129'8 905'6 = 8€0'6 129'6 NAON
0l6'9Z LLL'EL 6L LL vre'LL 6eL'EL 1G9'LL Lry'T) 1200
19/'62 LLo'zlL 9zv'olL 090°'LL 9glL'el 6vC'LL Lro'LL d3s
L19'/2 voL'El 18zl LyB'CL eLe'el 009'ZL vzs'el ony
Lri'8e 169'7L L0921 15921 vrl'el G8G'Cl Log'zL anre
G66'vT v/8'CL Ly0'CL 8L0'LL LELZL LoV'LL 18.'0L NAP
029'22 89G°LL 9810l €/c'0L 2G0'LL 226'6 0v.L'6 AVIN
£99'cT 166'11 L1€'0) 8/t'0L 999'L ) L06'6 0zZ9'0l ddv
06l've 896'L1L 069°0L 880°'LL get Tl €G0°'LL 090°'L1L HVIN
¥€5'9l 8.6'L 118'8 £€8's 956'8 GEZ'6 182'6 g34
G9G'/L GoY'8 9918 £8Y'8 00L'6 £91'6 881'6 NV
lejol (8102 1102 9102 8102 L1102 9102 UIUON
sjuswaue|dag sjuswaueduy
a3anoNl ¥ILYVHD HLIM STV10L
856 80G°'LT 888 /266 866'€ET 6€8'¥¥C | 6GY'LGT Ge69Ll |zee'lel [8ss'vzl | €402LL | Zvv'ezl | L0l'9zL | IVLOL
= ¥89'v 1 6€.'91 = LZy'L Lyy'8 = €9zZ'L 862'8 23d
S G99'/L €z.L'8l - 129'8 ¥0¢'6 - 806 6LY'6 NON
WAL 1T6'E 619l T26'L 065'92 £99'22 GB6'ET LLo'el 900°LL 969°'L1 6.G'cl 1G9°'LL 6622l 1200
8LLL ¥08'c s L06'L €0z'se 66€'LT 16E'TT 62e'Cl ozv'ol 806'0L ¥/8'C1 €/6'0l 68Y'LL d3s
00°LL 9gL' ZyolL eLe’l L19'12 188'vC 6..'GT v0L'EL 18Z'CL G099zl cLe'el 009'ZL vil'el onvy
geel L6Z'e 966 2LV 6€6'.LC 8¥9'v 1L08'¥e Claad) AXAA ovy'zlL cer'el ole'el L9e'ZL anre
129 LG 19§ Zv9 £69'72 9ez'ee £69°'L2 €TL'T) 806°LL 8L0‘LL 0/6°LL 8ze'LL G/9'0L NAP
00°LL gle'e oLl LELL glLe'ze ¥0L'02 L08'61 607 L1 yee'oL 0zz'ol L0601 0LL'6 /85'6 AVIN
8Z'8l 625'C €Z'8l CeLl 1£8'CZ 80¢'61 v.¥'02 G99'LL 638'6 99L‘0L o 6v¥'6 80¢'0L ddv
166 €/0'C 08°L z98 6EL'ET 99912 86022 vz8'LL eLo'ol ev0'LL GLB'LL €G0°'LL GLO'LL dvIN
(98°9) (zoz't) (18°9) (Lz9) 8ze'9l 0€G'ZL ¥06°LL G/8'/ 96G'8 Gz/l'8 €6y’ 7/6'8 6.L'6 g34
(£8°1) (6L€) (+G2) (622) 9¢/'9L GG0'/L 680°LL 6£6'L 620'8 Z61'8 161'8 920'6 /68'8 NV
4410% | VLol | 4dId% | oI¥0 8102 2102 9102 8102 L102 9102 8102 102 9L0Z |HLNOW
ISVYIYOIA/ASYIUONI "SSVd SYAODNISSYd Tv1lOoL SININANV1d3a SININIANVIdNT
810Z/.102
SANITHIVY d37NAd3HOS 11V

SOILSILVLS ANITHIV HLNT1NA

Dz




ovv'eel | /¥8'29 Gyy'e 269'29 95%'c [ejo1
03d
NAON
l2L'vL 1199 882 1889 182 100
vel'el v12'9 982 29¢'9 Tt d3s
0et'Sl eve'l oce ¥6e'.L 1G€ ony
vLz'sl G89'/ ¥0¢€ 826'9 162 1nr
08.'€L 9/9'9 ¥Ze ezr'9 1G€ NP
v1G'cl L6Y'9 99¢ ¥62'9 eZy AVIN
¥62'clL ¥61'9 4514 9ll'9 06¥% ydv
769'71 1G8'9 £8f 1£6'9 62y HVIN
¥95'6 v.E'Y 6¥C 8/9'v €9z g34
695'6 z82'y GlLe G89'y 182 NV
|elol SNUaA®Y | ASY UON | SnusAsy | A8y UON [ yiuop
SINININVY1d3A 8L0T SINININYIdINI 8102

7N 69/ 9zl 956 ovr'zel [9lo'osh | 252851 |[262'99 | e68%. G9e'g/ 8171 '99 €Z.L'G. z6£'08  [1vliOL
- 9966 6901 168y /82'S 60.L't z8L'e 03d
s GLE'LL goL'zL €GG'G #G0'9 ze8's LLL'O AON
G6'0 eel (590 (L¥) 12yl v66'clL LTSl G96'9 G8.'9 8Ly’ 291, 602'. 606°ZL 100
ov's €89 ge'e GLe v6lL'cl LLgzh 0/6'CL 09G'9 Z60'9 €62'9 ¥£9'9 6L1'9 JAWA:) d3s
Mg 908 9Ly z6e 0e¥'SL | ¥2o'vL 86G'Sl 6.9'L GzZ'L 00G'Z 1GL'L 66¢'L 860'8 ONY
€9'e €eg (e0'L) (G2) v12'SL 189'7L ,00'G) 686°L L8g'.L ke Gze'l 00¢g'L 085'. ne
(GL°1) (091) (99°0) (g¥) 08L'€l | ovB'Sl gzy'el 000°Z GLL'Z G9/'9 08.'9 Gz8'9 099'9 NP
GL'S 8¢/ 068 6YS v/G'€l | 9£8'C) 086zl 1G8'9 899'9 86%'9 LL1'9 89L'9 Z80'9 AVIN
8eL v16 6.8 veG ¥6Z'cl | 08€'CL 629'clL 889'9 80€'9 689'9 909'9 TL0'9 0¥6'9 ddv
8e'y .19 G6'C Lz ve9'vL | LL0'v) 266'vl vee'L 8269 8GY'L 09¢'L 6L ¥€5'.L HVIN
(¥28) (916) fLz 1) (¥8¢) 7956 08¥'0L 818'LL €29'y GGL'S G6.'G Ly6'Y Gze's €20'9 g34
(¥2°G) (£89) (G9°9) (¥5€) 695'6 ZsL'ol 11201 L6S'Y 9z8'y 122'S 2.6y 9ze's 955'G NV

4410% | TvlOoLl | 441a% 9140 8102 2102 9102 8102 1102 9L0Z 810z L102 9L0Z |HLNOW

3SYIYOIA/ASYIHONI "SSYd SYIONISSV TV.LOL SINININVYIdIA SINININYIdNI

8102/LL02

SANITAIV V113d
SOILSILVY1S INITHIV HLNTNd




8l-¥¢-¥ A3ASINIYH

8GG°L0L | £9g'6y 0.2l 695'6y | 95¢'L  [eloL

- 23d

- AON

eor'zL 806'G 8el 89Z'9 617l 120

6002 z29's L) 090'9 08} d3s

/8LCL 226'S €0l ¥20'9 8el onv

gzl'zL 0.2'9 /81 6219 6cl nre

€16'0L T6G'S LEL 9¢0's ¥Gl NOP

Zrl's Liv'y Ll 860t zel AVIN

eVS'6 G¥8'y zel 0zr'y ovl Hdv

Gb0'6 zGeE'Yy 8el 601t oL HVIN

¥9/'9 velL'e 8G Lyr'e g9 ga34

/91'2 LYZ'E g6 8LL'E 10} NV

|ejol SNUBASY | ASY UON [Snusasy | A8y UON |YIUOIA

paue|dad 8102 pauejduz 8102

16’12 | evigl 8/°02 L/6'8 86G'L0L [ €226 20.'26 £€9'05 661 9 £6E'OY GZ6'0S vzl'ly | 60g'oy [IVLIOL
e 8LL'g 0.2'9 ¥9G°C ¥GlL'E ¥65'C oLL'e 23d

. 062'9 8GG'9 v.0'c 08Z'¢ oLz'e 80¢'e AON

LLSy | veL's [Tyy | 696°L eov'zlL 699'8 899'8 9¥0'9 122y 8/Z'% L9 syt 06E'V 1200
LL'ge Lel e WA 989'} 6002} 888'8 LZY'6 69.'G vee'y GG9'y ovZ'9 ¥eS'y TLL'Y d3s
z8'8l 0€6'L 8’8l 196 /81'C) LGZ'0L 18L'0L GZ0'9 960'S GolL's Z9L'9 L0Z's 9/0'G oNvy
19'/2 | 86.'C 967 rATAl} gzl'zh 196'6 ¥6.'6 15%'9 LGBy €L0's 892'9 910's 18y anre
68,1 LL9'L 9zZ'SlL /89 eL6'olL 962'6 89Z'8 €zTL'S €6.L'Y €52y 06L'G €0S'y GL0'Y NOP
8Z0Z | viv'L ze9l 886 TrlL's 89Z'/ 122, z8s'y 999'¢ zel's 06}t z09'e GOG'E AVIN
6Ll | SL9C LZ'S¢e 68L'L £¥G'6 826'9 G8'9 L16'Y LGg'e LIV'E 99G'Yy LIE'E 89¢'e ddv
6L6L 9Gt'L 899l LG9 G¥0'6 68G'L 990°'L 061"y G89'c G8G'E GGGy ¥06'c L8b'e HVIN
(90%) |(982) (G2¢) (2g1) ¥9.'9 050°Z 9809 AT Lov'e 0£6'C zZlg'e 619'¢ 9GlL'e g34
Z8'¢ ¥92 8E'c 14 L9)') £06'9 ZLE'9 Zre'e £0Z'S 1/6'C Gz8's 00.'€ LyE'e NV
441d% | TVLOL | 441d% | 9180 8L0T L102 9102 8102 2102 9102 8102 .102 9L0Z [HLNOW

3SVYIYOIA/ASYIHONI| 'SSVd SYIONISSVYd TVLOL SINININVYIdIa SININIANYIdNI

8102/L102

SOILSILV1S ANITAIV HLNTNd

SANITAIVY d4LINN




Y0y e 89¢°| -~ GG/.T /9] [eJoL

23d

AON

0zg 0ze 120

795 062 v.2 d3s

- ONY

205 44 882 anre

z0¢g z0¢g NOP

¥0¢ 062 vl AVIN

9z8 659 191 Hdv

LY 882 €9l HVIN

902 90z g34

628 982 £YG NV

[elol | uelbelly | uywms | NOISIA [3INT813r| 'OONNS | SYILY |ysuon
08'%8 9/6 08'92 05 ¥0E'Y ZL9'¢ 1£8'¢C 80L'C 8L/ 0.6} 9612 ¥e8'L 198°L TV.LOL
- 82 = 24 - vl : 03d
- = 4014 - 20z s z0Z AON
8L'¢TlL LA 00°00L | 091 0zZ¢ eyl 962 09} eyl syl 091 S 8tl 100
GEP0L 882 LLE 9 96 9.2 ¥0¢€ z82 - ZGL z82 9.2 r4e] d3s
: = = = - 5 z69 = - Zve - = 0S¢ oNv
(69'9) (9¢) (69'9) (81) z0S 8€s PAV 162 692 JANA [Ketd 692 nre
€98 vz €98 zL z0¢ 8.2 901 LGl 6el - LGl 6el 90} NOP
= - (L) (L) ¥0¢ #0€ 90¢ 651 Z51 e] Gl 4] €Gl AVIN
(€8'6) (06) 98, 9¢ 9z8 oL6 ¥Z9 zee 8GY zle 4514 8GY 4% ddv
LLG8Y v.€ 00°00L | Z0€ LY Ef 06 d L 1% L0€ g 1% HVIN
(+5°09) (91¢) (rs09) [(8gL) 902 zes 91z o] 192 801 o) 192 801 g34
GG'202 GGG LLLzl | 991 628 V.2 z85 925 LEL 162 £0¢ /E) 162 NV
4410 % V1Ol | 441a % 1Te) 8102 9102 GLoz 8L0T L10T 9102 8102 2102 9L0Z [HLNOW

3ASVYIYOIA/ASYIHONI "SSVd SYIONISSVd TVLOL SININANVYId3IA SINININYIdNI

8102/2L02
Sdd14VHO

SOILSILV1S IANITHIV HLNTNd




